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          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I call the

          3  Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises to order. I

          4  apologize for the late start, but whenever there is

          5  a little rain in the City of New York, it's amazing

          6  how much traffic there is. It took me an hour to go

          7  a mile and a half myself.

          8                 Joining us this morning are Committee

          9  members, I've got to look at the list, since this is

         10  a new Committee. Eric Dilan, Simcha Felder, Robert

         11  Jackson is here, Melinda Katz, Mike McMahon, and

         12  also joining us are Annabel Palma, and Council

         13  Member Arroyo, who has within her district the main

         14  item on today's agenda.

         15                 First let me take care of the first

         16  thing that's on the agenda, which is preconsidered

         17  C030461 ZMX. Application submitted by Adar Assets

         18  Corporation, for an amendment of the zoning map

         19  changing from an existing R7-1 district to a C2-4

         20  district, property bounded by a line 100 feet

         21  southwesterly of East Tremont Avenue and other

         22  streets.

         23                 Is the applicant here? Didn't think

         24  so.

         25                 Is there anyone signed up to speak on
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          2  this item on the public hearing? Okay, I will close

          3  the public hearing on this item. However, we are

          4  going to lay the vote over to February 1st, and ask

          5  the applicant to be here at that time.

          6                 As many of you know, it has been a

          7  policy of this Committee that if the applicant

          8  doesn't show up, we will not pass that application.

          9  So, in this case we've communicated this to the

         10  applicant and it is rather disgraceful that they are

         11  not here.

         12                 So, not showing up puts your own

         13  application in jeopardy. We will give this person

         14  til February 1st. With that, I will move on to the

         15  only other item on today's agenda.

         16                 Land Use numbers, ULURP numbers

         17  050074, 050529 through 050532 and 050539. They are

         18  all related. Applications submitted by the New York

         19  City Economic Development Corporation, and the Bronx

         20  Terminal Market Development Partners, LLC., for what

         21  is commonly referring to as the Bronx Terminal

         22  Market Project.

         23                 I will ask the applicant and EDC to

         24  come up and give their presentation. We have

         25  Commissioner Alper, President Alper, Hardy Adasko,
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          2  Jesse Masyr and Gregory Cranford.

          3                 MR. ADASKO: Good morning. I'm going

          4  to start. My name is Hardy Adasko. I'm Senior Vice

          5  President of Planning at the New York City Economic

          6  Development Corporation. I wanted to briefly set the

          7  public purpose context for this project before the

          8  specifics of the presentation.

          9                 More than 30 years ago, the City

         10  entered into a long-term lease for the Bronx

         11  Terminal Market that ultimately resulted in

         12  extensive litigation and severe deterioration of the

         13  market.

         14                 Last year the related companies cut

         15  through the legal stalemate with this proposed

         16  project, a regional retail center in the Bronx.

         17                 The proposed Gateway Center at Bronx

         18  Terminal Market is a nearly $400 million one-million

         19  square foot retail project that will include a

         20  waterfront park and esplanade.

         21                 This project will keep dollars in the

         22  Bronx that are now going to New Jersey and

         23  Westchester, and will create new life on the streets

         24  around Yankee Stadium.

         25                 Perhaps most importantly, the
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          2  redevelopment of the Bronx Terminal Market will

          3  generate more than 5,000 permanent and construction

          4  jobs, many going to local residents.

          5                 It will create new economic

          6  opportunities for a long-underserved community.

          7  Related will pay the City substantially more in rent

          8  than what the previous landlord last paid and the

          9  project will produce about $21 million in annual tax

         10  revenue for the City.

         11                 In addition, the project will allow

         12  us to reclaim the Harlem River waterfront for the

         13  benefit of the public.

         14                 When combined with the replacement

         15  park as part of the Yankee Stadium Project, a

         16  transforming and significant public amenity will be

         17  created.

         18                 We know that you are concerned about

         19  the future of existing businesses, the workers and

         20  the markets they serve. So are we. That is why the

         21  City, the Empowerment Zone, the Bronx Borough

         22  President, other elected officials and other Related

         23  companies have offered the market's existing tenants

         24  a generous $8 million relocation package, as well as

         25  the assistance of the Cornerstone Group, a business
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          2  relocation consultant.

          3                 Andy Alper, President of EDC, will

          4  offer greater detail in a few minutes about our

          5  efforts to help the tenants find suitable

          6  alternative space.

          7                 Let me close by saying that the

          8  project of this scope has the potential to become a

          9  spectacular centerpiece of the City's efforts to

         10  revitalize the South Bronx, produce more jobs for

         11  local residents, and create a safer and stronger

         12  quality of life for the families who live there.

         13                 In short, we request your support for

         14  the project.

         15                 Jesse and other representatives of

         16  Related will describe the project in detail, and

         17  I'll be happy to answer your questions after the

         18  presentation.

         19                 MR. MASYR: Good morning, Mr.

         20  Chairman, members of the Committee. My name is Jesse

         21  Masyr. I'm a member of the law firm of Wachtel and

         22  Masyr, and we are Land Use Development Counsel to

         23  the developer applicant in this project.

         24                 The gentleman to my immediate right

         25  is Gerald Johnson, also of my law firm.
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          2                 I'm about to show you a brief

          3  presentation, a power point presentation, to take

          4  you through the many aspects of this development.

          5  Before that we are, I just would like to state, that

          6  we are particularly pleased by the amount of local

          7  support that this project has gathered through this

          8  ULURP process. Community Board 4 in the Bronx, the

          9  community board where the project is located, voted

         10  24 to 2 in support of this development, and you will

         11  hear today from other business people in the

         12  community in support of the project, and we're

         13  particularly pleased that 161st Street Merchants

         14  Association, that Merchants Association closest to

         15  our development has written a letter which I will

         16  submit into the record, but I will only read the

         17  last paragraph, which is, "I hope the City Council

         18  will give its approval and join us in promoting this

         19  project that will only enhance the business climate

         20  of our Bronx neighborhood.

         21                 So, we are very pleased that we have

         22  been able to get the support, not only the community

         23  board, but the local merchants surrounding Bronx

         24  Terminal Market.

         25                 To your I guess left, my right, is a
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          2  screen and we will show you the project as briefly

          3  as we can. Keeping in mind that the project is a

          4  large geometric shape and does not lead itself well

          5  to one single rendering viewpoint. That is why we

          6  will take you through some of our planning and

          7  ultimately show you a very, very quick animation to

          8  illustrate the various viewpoints of the project.

          9                 The developer is the Related

         10  Companies, which most recently developed and owns

         11  and manages the Gateway Center in Brooklyn near

         12  Starrett City. This has been, I think, a very

         13  successful project and a good example of the quality

         14  of work you can expect.

         15                 The 640,000 square feet of retail

         16  space created more than 1,360 jobs and I think if

         17  you go there you will see an architectural finish

         18  that you're not really accustomed to in urban

         19  development. This is a company that buys, owns and

         20  manages, does not sell, so we buy and manage and

         21  develop with the idea of long-term ownership.

         22                 One of the things that we'll hear a

         23  number of times today is the number of people living

         24  near this site. There are 1.2 million residents

         25  within two miles of this site, which means that we
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          2  believe that we can develop a large scale retail

          3  center that is not automobile dependent as others

          4  you have seen in the City. We expect people to come

          5  here through means other than just cars.

          6                 This is a picture of the site

          7  location. The site is 16.8 acres. It comprises all

          8  of the Bronx Terminal Market as it exists east of

          9  the Major Deegan, and concurrent vacant site of the

         10  Men's House of Detention.

         11                 And just to orientate you a little

         12  bit better, that is the site which will contain a

         13  retail and hotel conference center when completed.

         14  Just some other landmarks. This was the former

         15  Olympic site for the velodrome. The site is adjacent

         16  to major highways, both the Major Deegan in the

         17  Bronx and the Harlem River Drive, just across the

         18  river, as well as being supported by three bridges

         19  connecting the Bronx to Manhattan.

         20                 It also is the beneficiary of major

         21  local roads, the Grand Concourse and 149th Street.

         22  The site is made up of the warehouses that currently

         23  comprise the Bronx Terminal Markets, the vacant

         24  Men's House of Detention and to the north a parking

         25  lot, was the home of the Farmer's Market.
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          2                 This is just a picture of the Men's

          3  House of Detention, the WH1 Building we have already

          4  demolished. It was unsafe and had a black shroud on

          5  it for years, which we took down.

          6                 These are some photographs of the

          7  market in their current condition. The market has a

          8  long history of neglect.

          9                 If you're standing in Manhattan

         10  looking across the Harlem River, this is what you

         11  would see today, and this is what we hope with your

         12  approval, we will be able to create in the next

         13  three to four years in the Bronx. And this is just

         14  to give you a sort of close up with one of the

         15  architectural details.

         16                 The proposed site plan calls for a

         17  hotel to be built in Phase II in the most northern

         18  portion of the site. It will have 87,000 square feet

         19  of neighborhood retailers designed for small retail

         20  shops and restaurants to surround this project, one

         21  major north retail building containing 463,000

         22  square feet of floor area on three floors of retail,

         23  one floor of parking containing 400,000 square feet,

         24  and they are connected by a six-story parking

         25  garage.
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          2                 The math may seem confusing at this

          3  point, because we're talking about two three-story

          4  retail buildings and a six-story parking garage in

          5  between, but we'll show you how that works.

          6                 Because of the double height nature

          7  of retail development, we can actually slip six

          8  floors of parking within three floors of retail, and

          9  due to the grade changes that this site has, have

         10  been able to utilize that so that each level, each

         11  one of the levels of retail lines up with one of the

         12  six levels of parking.

         13                 If you were standing today underneath

         14  the Major Deegan looking north, this is what

         15  Exterior Street looks like, and again, this is what

         16  -- you'll see this a little bit better in the

         17  animation, this is what the sidewalk will now look

         18  like as this becomes a sidewalk that needs to bring

         19  pedestrian life to the center.

         20                 The arrow that you see here is the

         21  street that we're creating through the middle of our

         22  project, connecting River Avenue to Exterior,

         23  getting people down to the waterfront for really the

         24  first time in this area. It's really not an

         25  accessible waterfront. And the current condition of
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          2  the waterfront doesn't make it something that is

          3  inviting.

          4                 This will operate as a street open to

          5  the public at all times. What you're seeing also in

          6  the picture is the bridges that connect the parking

          7  garage to each retail floor.

          8                 This is a site that, I'm sure one of

          9  the markers that you've known about Bronx Terminal

         10  Market is this building, it's been sitting there

         11  with words "City of New York 1935." Originally it

         12  was slated for demolition, but we have, to the

         13  encouragement of a number of people, the Borough

         14  President, community board and City Planning, we

         15  have now undergone a restoration proposal for this

         16  site, to bring it back to life and to make it

         17  retail. And you notice we're also adding street

         18  level windows, and street level entrances, again to

         19  enliven the street to make it pedestrian friendly.

         20                 We expect this center to be a Bronx

         21  Center. Eighty-five percent of our customers will be

         22  coming from the Bronx. We don't expect to draw from

         23  outside significantly, other than a little bit from

         24  Manhattan. Most of our customers from the Bronx, 15

         25  percent from the Grand Concourse, 16 percent from
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          2  Central Bronx, 17 from south and east and 37 from

          3  northern Bronx, including northeastern Bronx.

          4  Fifteen percent will come from Manhattan. Northern

          5  Manhattan does not have a significant amount of

          6  large retail available, even though people of

          7  northern Manhattan clearly shop at large retail

          8  establishments.

          9                 As I said earlier, we expect a lot of

         10  people to come by foot. There is ample pedestrian

         11  access to the site, both down the Grand Concourse,

         12  down Gerard and 149th Street, and even pedestrian

         13  access for those wishing to walk over from

         14  Manhattan, over the 145th Street Bridge.

         15                 What perhaps is the most unique

         16  infrastructure for this project is its subway

         17  access, which is something, is unusual in urban

         18  development of this scale.

         19                 We have the Yankee Stadium subway

         20  stop which allows us the 4, the B and the D, and a

         21  relatively short walk down River Avenue to one of

         22  the two front doors of the project.

         23                 The 149th Street is our closest

         24  subway stop. That picks up the 2, the 4 and the 5,

         25  and a relatively short walk to our entrance, and
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          2  lastly, we even have a subway stop close on the

          3  Manhattan side that gives us access to number three

          4  trains. So, we have most unique amount of very close

          5  subway access.

          6                 There is also bus access here, both

          7  the BX 19 going across 145th Street, the Grand

          8  Concourse Bus, the BX 1 and the BX 13.

          9                 As similar to pedestrian access,

         10  there is good local road access, which I have just

         11  demonstrated to you, and the major highway access is

         12  also special here. Going southbound on the Major

         13  Deegan, people have two choices, one, to get off at

         14  a stop that leaves them right at our front door, or

         15  the same exit takes them to River Avenue to entrance

         16  our other front door.

         17                 If you're going northbound, you'll be

         18  getting off at the 149th Street exit, which is right

         19  at our front door. You'll have a choice at that

         20  point to go up either River or Exterior, depending

         21  on where your final and primary, more of where your

         22  primary shopping destination is.

         23                 The construction benefits of this

         24  project will create over 2,200 construction jobs

         25  with over $100 million in construction wages.
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          2                 The annual operating benefits will

          3  create when it's complete and tenanted 2,300

          4  full-time jobs, with more than $73 million in annual

          5  wages, $46 million in taxes of which $21 million are

          6  City tax revenues.

          7                 Community benefits. This project

          8  will, with the aid of the City Council members and

          9  the Borough President and a number of community

         10  groups, have a Community Benefits Agreement by the

         11  time you vote. That document has been negotiated.

         12  It's still in the process of finishing negotiation.

         13  It will address issues such as job opportunity,

         14  making sure that Bronx businesses get a preference

         15  to be involved in the construction of this project,

         16  as well as making sure that many of the commitments

         17  in terms of design and amenities become

         18  memorialized.

         19                 So, this is, I think a first for you,

         20  it's certainly a first for us, that a ULURP project

         21  will have this attached. Although, I know it is not

         22  the subject of the matter before you. But I do know

         23  it is also an interest of many of your members.

         24                 And, so, as I said, this agreement

         25  will have the Bronx first buy first program and a
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          2  number of efforts and task force that will ensure

          3  the Bronx residents get to work here.

          4                 The number of actions before you are

          5  the long-term lease of City-owned property, is a

          6  rezoning from its current M 2 to a C4-4. Some three

          7  changes to the street mapping of the City, 150th

          8  Street, Cromwell Avenue and 151st Street all need to

          9  be removed from the City map.

         10                 There are special permit

         11  modifications for the bulk of the building, they are

         12  actually quite minor. The building is, without

         13  exception, maybe yard regulations, it is really

         14  within the current bulk, and there is a special

         15  permit for the parking garage because it is larger

         16  than the accessory garage could permit, and there is

         17  a waiver of sign regulations, which are minor and

         18  you will see in the animation.

         19                 There are also a number of traffic

         20  improvements proposed in this project. There is new

         21  traffic signals along Exterior Street which

         22  shouldn't be surprising because the change of use

         23  really does change the need for traffic.

         24                 The signal timing adjustments, you

         25  saw the new median and curb treatments underneath
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          2  the Deegan. And perhaps this is the most important

          3  one. On 149th Street, that intersection currently

          4  needs help to allow pedestrians to cross safely and

          5  for cars to interact with them and be able to get

          6  through the intersection.

          7                 So, the first thing we're going to do

          8  is widen the sidewalks to make the crossing time

          9  less for pedestrians. We will widen the ramp on the

         10  149th Street exist, without any condemnation or any

         11  taking of property which will double the queuing

         12  size of that space.

         13                 In addition there will be lane

         14  clarifications and dedicated lane turns added to

         15  this, all at the developer's cost which will make

         16  149th Street a safe spot.

         17                 So, if you will, I will just briefly

         18  show you an animation that's about a minute and a

         19  half.

         20                 What the animation really is trying

         21  to accomplish is to give you a sense of street, and

         22  to see how we're going to make this an attractive

         23  area for pedestrians, both those coming from subways

         24  and those coming from the residential communities

         25  surrounding us.

                                                            20

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 The first thing we're going to do is

          3  take you up Exterior Street, which is under the

          4  Major Deegan, and give you a sense of how

          5  pedestrians and cars will interact.

          6                 This shows you briefly the widening

          7  of the street, the sidewalk, as you came in. And

          8  what we have avoided here at the urging of all of

          9  the parties that have monitored us to date, is no

         10  long blank walls along either River or Exterior,

         11  which will clearly not be pedestrian friendly.

         12                 So, even where we have large parking

         13  structures, those parking structures on the street

         14  level have retail in front of them, they're not just

         15  cars.

         16                 You're coming up to right now

         17  actually the large parking structure that connects

         18  both buildings, but if I could point your attention

         19  to what you're seeing on the street level, again, is

         20  a retail establishment, the parking obviously behind

         21  it. And this is the street connecting River Avenue

         22  to Exterior Street, as a way to get down to the

         23  water's edge.

         24                 I will just give you a second

         25  perspective of that. As you can see, we are planning
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          2  restaurants along Exterior Street, looking across

          3  the road but out to the water. I think that they

          4  will be successful locations.

          5                 This is the final sequence driving

          6  along the Major Deegan. What you're seeing here is

          7  the signage for the project, which is one of the

          8  waivers you have before you. We think it's a modest

          9  waiver, and just to show you how we break up the

         10  long wall going along the Major Deegan.

         11                 That ends our presentation.

         12                 MR. ALPER: Okay, I guess I'm the

         13  finish up batterer here. And what I want to do is

         14  talk about a tenant relocation, and where things

         15  stand since we were last before the City Council in

         16  2005.

         17                 As you may recall, and as my

         18  colleagues have mentioned, the City and the Bronx

         19  Delegation in the empowerment zone put together a $8

         20  million relocation package to help the tenants find

         21  new space.

         22                 I'm pleased to say that six of the 23

         23  tenants have in fact accepted the relocation package

         24  and plan to leave the market by the end of March.

         25                 Unfortunately, the remaining tenants
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          2  still appear focused on a new market built with

          3  public dollars, which is something the City has said

          4  quite consistently we will not undertake.

          5                 As a result, I'm afraid to report

          6  there has been little progress made in helping the

          7  remaining tenants relocate.

          8                 At the last hearing I pointed out

          9  that the tenants refused to talk with us on the

         10  advice of their counsel. I made clear that we wanted

         11  to help them find space, but that we needed to have

         12  a meaningful dialogue in order for us to do that.

         13                 I want to thank the Bronx Delegation,

         14  and in particular, Council Member Rivera and the

         15  Bronx Borough President Adolfo Carrion for arranging

         16  a meeting soon after that hearing with the tenants,

         17  city representatives and elected officials.

         18                 We went into that meeting quite

         19  optimistic, and very hopeful that tenants would work

         20  with us and we would be able to move forward with

         21  our efforts to relocate, if not in one location,

         22  then in clusters of like tenants that needed to be

         23  together.

         24                 Unfortunately, that didn't happen.

         25  The tenants were not interested in discussing
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          2  available properties, and they again focused on a

          3  new market building that could accommodate everyone.

          4                 They were joined by a consultant, a

          5  development consultant from Staubach Company.

          6                 The tenants and their advisors

          7  offered a number of alternatives suggested by

          8  Columbia Professors Susan Fainstein. Each of the

          9  proposed sites were problematic, because they

         10  involved assemblages, inappropriate uses for

         11  specific sites, or some other challenge.

         12                 The tenants asked whether we would

         13  provide tax benefits if they found a developer who

         14  would in fact build the new market.

         15                 We assured them that we're prepared

         16  to provide customer and tax benefits, and we'll be

         17  happy to review their plans.

         18                 We advised them in that meeting of

         19  what basic information we need to evaluate

         20  incentives, including the square footage needs, job

         21  numbers, threshold rents and taxes paid.

         22                 We were disappointed that we didn't

         23  receive the plan or meaningful answers for

         24  information requests.

         25                 Despite that, we continued to work
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          2  with our relocation consultant, the Cornerstone

          3  Group, and the Bronx Overall Economic Development

          4  Corporation, to compile a list of buildings in

          5  geographic clusters.

          6                 These areas included locations around

          7  East 138th Street in Port Morris, not far from the

          8  existing market, and in Hunts Point. We continue to

          9  believe that an existing building or buildings are a

         10  better economic solution for the tenants since they

         11  are more readily available and more affordable than

         12  the high cost of site acquisition and new

         13  construction.

         14                 In September, we met again with the

         15  tenants and BOEDC to ascertain the tenants' interest

         16  in relocating to these existing buildings. Once

         17  again, we sought their input to identify what

         18  tenants wanted to relocate together, the amount of

         19  space they needed and what rent they could afford to

         20  pay. And once again were disappointed.

         21                 Instead, they said they were

         22  considering a new plan to assemble three entire City

         23  blocks owned by multiple owners, including the Skate

         24  Key building, a large UPS facility and several other

         25  occupied properties, as a site for a new market
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          2  building.

          3                 The tenants said they would return to

          4  us with a more detailed plan. Again, we never

          5  received the plan.

          6                 In October, the judge overseeing the

          7  litigation appointed a Special Master to determine

          8  if there was some basis for settling the relocation

          9  issue in advance of the court's ruling.

         10                 In early November, we met with the

         11  tenants and the Special Master, who told the tenants

         12  that a realistic solution did not involve building a

         13  new market, since they had not been able to identify

         14  a readily available site.

         15                 The Special Master added that Related

         16  would not be able to delay building its project to

         17  accommodate a lengthy process of acquiring

         18  properties to assemble a site for a large new

         19  building.

         20                 The Special Master urged the tenants

         21  to tour the nearly 30 properties that our relocation

         22  consultant and BOEDC had identified. The tenants and

         23  EDC subsequently toured about 20 sites in November.

         24                 These sites included 145,000 square

         25  foot building owned by Baldor Specialty Foods. The
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          2  building was offered to the tenants at $8 per square

          3  foot for an exclusive period, which is not far off

          4  the average below-market rents they currently pay of

          5  $7.50 per square foot. The tenants did not accept

          6  this offer.

          7                 On November 21st, EDC and the tenants

          8  met again with the Special Master, at which point

          9  the tenants rejected all the buildings they visited.

         10  They told the Special Master that they were prepared

         11  only to consider a new market.

         12                 The Special Master reported back to

         13  the judge that he did not think there was a basis

         14  for a settlement and recommended that mediation be

         15  suspended, unless the tenants agreed to relocate to

         16  some of the available buildings.

         17                 The judge asked the tenants' counsel

         18  to report which properties they were interested in,

         19  and if none, then what the settlement proposal was.

         20                 On December 1st, the tenants'

         21  attorneys wrote to the court saying they wanted to

         22  build on a site in the Harlem River Rail Yards,

         23  which is committed under a long-term lease to a

         24  private landlord.

         25                 This was one of the sites proposed by
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          2  Professor Fainstein six months earlier.

          3                 The tenants told the judge they

          4  needed more time to assess the site's development

          5  potential and its affordability, adding that they

          6  would not be able to develop the site without

          7  substantial assistance from the City and State.

          8                 They said they would get back to the

          9  court with a development plan. Neither we nor the

         10  court have heard back from the tenants regarding

         11  this site.

         12                 Now, we all know that Land Use issues

         13  are frequently complicated, and judicial opinions on

         14  them are often equivocal, but on January 4, the

         15  judge issued an unequivocal decision unusual in its

         16  clarity ruling against the tenants, dismissing all

         17  of the causes of action against the City and

         18  Related.

         19                 Despite this court ruling and the

         20  tenants repeated lack of cooperation, we and Related

         21  remain committed to helping the tenants find

         22  suitable relocation alternatives.

         23                 But once again let me be very clear

         24  on that point. It's the same thing I said back in

         25  June. When I last spoke to the Council, I said that
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          2  time was running out. Since then seven month have

          3  passed and virtually nothing has happened, despite

          4  continuous efforts by the City and elected officials

          5  to help them relocate, the tenants have refused to

          6  cooperate.

          7                 The City, a relocation consultant,

          8  BOEDC, and I'm sure the Bronx elected officials,

          9  will be unable to help the tenants find suitable

         10  space and remain in business unless they work with

         11  us immediately.

         12                 I'm an optimist. I remain hopeful

         13  they will.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Before we take

         16  questions from Committee members and guests, what

         17  I'd like to do is take a break and move to the

         18  outside room. There are 40 to 50 people that are out

         19  here. This is more than we expected to have. So, if

         20  the panel will move to the outside room, so will the

         21  Committee and so will the guests.

         22                 (Recess taken.)

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Normally the

         24  Zoning and Franchises Committee meets in the

         25  Committee Room and we judge participation based on
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          2  people who have shown up, like the Borough

          3  President's hearing and the City Planning Commission

          4  hearing, obviously the number of people that are

          5  here today is double and maybe triple that number.

          6                 We did finish the presentation by the

          7  panel, the applicant and EDC. I will now entertain

          8  questions from Committee members and other members

          9  of the Council.

         10                 I will first, as common courtesy,

         11  offer an opportunity for Council Member Arroyo,

         12  since this lies within her district, if she'd like

         13  to make a statement? Or we'll start off with the

         14  questions.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chairman.

         17                 Good morning. Thank you for your

         18  presentation. First, I'd like to thank the Committee

         19  Chair, the Chair of the Land Use Committee, my

         20  colleagues in the Bronx Delegation for their support

         21  and hard work over the last couple of weeks

         22  regarding this issue.

         23                 But I'm utterly confused right now.

         24  We've put a lot of work in trying to get a win/win

         25  situation here for in particular the tenants that
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          2  are at the Bronx Terminal Market. In June we met in

          3  a public hearing at a Contracts Committee, and the

          4  discussion we had was, come to the table, talk to

          5  each other, let's get this resolved so that we can

          6  move on with it. And Mr. Alper, you just testified

          7  that we seem to be back to square one. And this is

          8  not what I thought was happening as late as Friday

          9  morning when the Bronx Delegation met with the

         10  Borough President and Related Company to discuss

         11  this project.

         12                 Please clarify for me what I may be

         13  misunderstanding.

         14                 MR. ALPER: I don't think you're

         15  really misunderstanding anything. I think the issue

         16  is that we said in June, we've been very clear, and

         17  we said to you in private meetings as well, the City

         18  is not going to build a market for the tenants. I

         19  think everybody understands that.

         20                 The tenants have insisted on trying

         21  to find a developer I guess to build a market. We

         22  have told them what we think is realistic and what

         23  is not, and the realistic solutions, both in terms

         24  of cost and availability and doability involve not

         25  any market being built, it involve existing
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          2  buildings, which means tenants have to work in

          3  clusters, not as a cohesive group.

          4                 Despite our consistent advice to

          5  that, and they have insisted on focusing solely on

          6  building a new market, and it's just not realistic.

          7                 So, we have met a number of times. We

          8  have had the consultants meeting with them, we've

          9  shown them properties, but at the end of the day

         10  that's all we can do.

         11                 We're not going to build a new

         12  market. I don't think it's feasible to build a new

         13  market even with a private developer, especially in

         14  the time frame that we're working under at this

         15  point.

         16                 So, that's where things stand. We

         17  still remain committed to help, if we can.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: But that's my

         19  point. I thought we were past that. That the

         20  understanding that we have in the Bronx Delegation,

         21  and I will not speak for my colleagues, but that

         22  there was positive discussions occurring, and that

         23  there is close to some solution to the issue of the

         24  remaining tenants.

         25                 MR. MASYR: You're correct,
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          2  Councilwoman. What has happened, and it's really not

          3  confusion, it's just two different things, I think

          4  President Alper has been talking about building a

          5  new market, what has occurred since the lawsuit had

          6  been adjudicated by the judge is that for the first

          7  time a group of tenants, they say they represent the

          8  overall majority of the tenants, have come and made

          9  a counter offer to us based on the original offer

         10  that the City put as a relocation package before

         11  them.

         12                 Their counter offer is significantly

         13  higher, not surprisingly, than what was originally

         14  offered, in the sense of negotiating. We are

         15  planning to meet with them tomorrow, these

         16  representatives, and we know that the Bronx

         17  Delegation has made it very clear that a reasonable

         18  test is the one that we're being held to, so

         19  therefore we are taking that seriously, in terms of

         20  addressing meeting their demand that they made to

         21  us. They called us, made an offer to us, and we are

         22  going to think it is close, if not exactly to it, as

         23  possible, and think that therefore we will have

         24  achieved the reasonable in this test, and that

         25  meeting is scheduled, it's my understanding, for
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          2  some time tomorrow.

          3                 MR. ALPER: Just to be clear, I don't

          4  believe that involves the specific relocation. It

          5  involves paying them money to do whatever they want

          6  to do at that point.

          7                 There is no, to my knowledge, no

          8  specific relocation proposal on the table.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: That sounds

         10  more like what I understood on Friday morning.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 MR. MASYR: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I have a list of

         14  Council members who want to ask questions. We will

         15  go in the order that people are asking me. I just

         16  remind my colleagues that we have over 20 speakers,

         17  so get to the point.

         18                 Council Member Katz.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you. I

         20  want to tag on to Council Member Arroyo.

         21                 I also was under the impression that

         22  you guys were very close to an agreement on the

         23  merchants that were there.

         24                 Jesse, perhaps it would be easier if

         25  you went through just very quickly what the offer
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          2  was that the six merchants agreed to. I understand

          3  there's 17 more. What it is that's being offered on

          4  the table for the 17 merchants, the timing of it and

          5  how far you are in the negotiations. Because I think

          6  the details is probably what's missing, and I think

          7  that that's important.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: By the way, while

          9  they're discussing this, I had a briefing with the

         10  EDC and Related, I think it was on Thursday or

         11  Friday of last week, and one of the things that i

         12  asked for was a list of all the tenants, and the

         13  names of all the tenants that are there and the

         14  tenants that have agreed to relocation, and we were

         15  provided with that information this morning. So, if

         16  anybody wants it, you can make copies.

         17                 MR. MASYR: As I understand the math,

         18  the original offer that was, in fact, the only offer

         19  that was put on the table on behalf of the City,

         20  BOEDC, and the developer, was made up of a number of

         21  combinations of money, but essentially it was $10 a

         22  square foot from EDC, for relocating.

         23                 There was a $3 million loan being

         24  offered by the empowerment zone and there was a rent

         25  rebate being offered by Related.
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          2                 What we've been asked for now is $30

          3  a square foot and to allow them to stay til June

          4  1st. And I want to make it very clear. That is an

          5  offer that's been made to us, a counter offer, by a

          6  group of merchants who have said to us they

          7  represent substantially all of the market.

          8                 This was not transmitted to us by

          9  their attorneys, so we're meeting with them tomorrow

         10  to see how we can close that gap between where the

         11  original relocation offer is and what their request

         12  is.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: My understanding

         14  is that's about four of the merchants who are

         15  talking for the group.

         16                 MR. MASYR: You may be correct.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay. But either

         18  way you are trying to work it out over the next

         19  week, since the vote will be February 1st. You're

         20  just trying to work it out with the merchants, even

         21  if it's on an individual basis; is that correct?

         22                 MR. MASYR: I am trying to work it out

         23  to achieve that reasonable standard that I have been

         24  told the Bronx Delegation is requiring.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you.
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          2                 In the interest of time, Mr.

          3  Chairman, I will pass on any further questions at

          4  the moment.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          7                 Council Member Rivera.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Thank you very

          9  much, Chairman.

         10                 First I want to thank all the parties

         11  that are here today, because this has been an

         12  extremely long process in terms of figuring out what

         13  we're going to do with the Gateway Project.

         14                 I think from, you know, the concept

         15  of it, everybody, the majority of people seem to be

         16  on board because we see how it's going to enliven

         17  and renovate and beautify the entire neighborhood

         18  that it is surrounding.

         19                 Now, the question is, when we first

         20  started the process, we started it off at the $10,

         21  you know, presented by EDC and obviously that was

         22  something that the tenants and the merchants felt it

         23  was not suitable for them to move forward, and now

         24  we have a counter offer of $30 and the opportunity

         25  to stay til June 1st. How realistic is that counter
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          2  offer? Is that something that is going to be a

          3  possibility for the tenants, or is that not going to

          4  be discussed until tomorrow with them?

          5                 MR. MASYR: As I said, there's a

          6  meeting scheduled currently with a number of the

          7  merchants. I don't really want to get into a public

          8  negotiation, but as I said, we are going to try our

          9  best to achieve that request and get as close to it

         10  as possible.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: And then once

         12  the meeting is completed and a full negotiation

         13  package has been agreed upon from the parties that

         14  are involved, we will be immediately informed as

         15  well?

         16                 MR. MASYR: We'll keep the window

         17  open.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Thank you.

         19                 MR. ALPER: One thing to add, which is

         20  a complicated factor here, when we put the

         21  relocation package on the table quite awhile ago,

         22  the intent was to help them relocate hopefully in

         23  the Bronx. The $3 million empowerment zone money I

         24  believe is only available if they relocate and open

         25  up business in the Bronx. It comes off the table if
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          2  they just want to be bought out and retire, go

          3  somewhere else.

          4                 The $10 a square foot, I need to

          5  verify it, I believe it's only available in New York

          6  City. So, we've been trying to engage them on a

          7  relocation so they can stay in business, we can

          8  reserve the jobs. They appear to be drifting in a

          9  different direction now, and it's really not clear.

         10  We may not know until tomorrow, frankly, how all

         11  these pieces fall together.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Now, the

         13  additional sites, how feasible are they in terms of

         14  feasibility for the tenants, the Skate Key site and

         15  the other sites that have been mentioned in the

         16  past?

         17                 MR. ALPER: Well, the sites that we've

         18  been showing are really feasible but not to relocate

         19  all the tenants as a group. And we've been saying

         20  that very consistently. You know, we have a pretty

         21  good sense of the real estate market in the Bronx,

         22  and we didn't believe there were any sites available

         23  at a price they'd be willing to pay that would make

         24  sense for an entire market being rebuilt or being

         25  constructed.
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          2                 The 20 or 30 sites we've shown them

          3  we believe are feasible for clusters of tenants to

          4  relocate together. And we think that's the best

          5  alternative, the most practical alternative to move

          6  forward constructively.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Okay. And I

          8  think just for a side note, I think that what's

          9  important here is that we understand the magnitude

         10  of this project, what it's going to be able to

         11  create within the Bronx, and how we want to be able

         12  to create something that's a win/win situation on

         13  all parties that are involved.

         14                 We want to be able to develop this

         15  property in a manner that's conducive to progress

         16  within our community, but at the same time take care

         17  of the tenants, because we feel since they've been

         18  there for so many years, they deserve the

         19  opportunity to find a location or be given a package

         20  that will allow them to continue to conduct

         21  business, and hopefully within the Bronx, hopefully

         22  within our City and hopefully within our State. So,

         23  I want to commend all the parties. I know this has

         24  been a very difficult process leading up to this

         25  point. We only have a couple more weeks to go, but I
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          2  want to commend all the parties involved, from EDC

          3  to Related to the merchants and to the members of

          4  the Bronx Delegation for meeting and trying to deal

          5  in a positive effort on this position. So, thank you

          6  very much, gentlemen.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          8  McMahon.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chairman. Good morning, gentlemen.

         11                 During the testimony and presentation

         12  that we heard there were some statements related

         13  about the role of Related. Can you just tell me the

         14  process that brought Related into this project, and

         15  what is the official designation that they have?

         16                 In particular, Mr. Adasko says last

         17  year the Related Companies cut through the legal

         18  stalemate with the proposed project, a regional

         19  retail center in the Bronx. I would almost expect

         20  that to say last year the Corporation cut through

         21  the legal stalemate.

         22                 So, I'm just curious what role

         23  they're playing with their titles and what process

         24  brought them to this point?

         25                 MR. ALPER: I'll give you the Readers'
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          2  Digest version of a very long tale, and I'm going to

          3  ask somebody next to me to kick me if I speak

          4  imprecisely.

          5                 Going back to the seventies, the City

          6  entered into a long-term lease with Strategic

          7  Development Corporation, Buntzman was the

          8  gentleman's name, to do a wholesale market at the

          9  site. Almost from day one the site was troubled, the

         10  landlord was not a good landlord, didn't invest in

         11  the property, was in dispute with tenants, with the

         12  City. When we came on the scene four years ago now,

         13  things were at a complete impasse. There were

         14  lawsuits back and forth. Buntzman was suing the City

         15  for allowing a viaduct to fall into disrepair. We

         16  were suing Buntzman for non-payment of rent and

         17  other things and violations. The City had at that

         18  point just recently lost a court decision with

         19  respect to the viaduct, and we were scheduled to go

         20  to trial for the damages portion of that. You know,

         21  you never know what happens in a trial, but the

         22  belief at the time was that the City would pay

         23  substantial damages from that award.

         24                 At this point there was no dialogue

         25  going on. We also heard that for a number of years
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          2  before we came into office that Buntzman had been

          3  talking to developers about trying to develop the

          4  site. And I believe that one of those developers

          5  before this Administration was Related, among

          6  others.

          7                 The court was trying to find a

          8  settlement, and brought in a mediator to try to work

          9  with the parties. The mediator at one point said the

         10  only way to break this impasse between the City and

         11  the developer, the developer being Buntzman in this

         12  case, is to try to increase the value of the

         13  property, because operators, this wholesale market,

         14  there's not enough value to have everybody walk away

         15  from the transaction.

         16                 At that point, this is out of our

         17  control, at that point, or at some point, and maybe

         18  Jesse can address this, but Buntzman and Related

         19  starting having a discussion about this project. The

         20  parties came to us and said that Related is prepared

         21  to buy out Buntzman's lease and Related came to us

         22  and said we will do this only if we can propose a

         23  retail project, and then, you know, we negotiated

         24  these somewhat complicated terms around it.

         25                 What the City entered into was a
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          2  short-term wholesale lease to related. So right now

          3  they are the lessor of the wholesale market. We do

          4  that under City law and the Charter without having

          5  to go through a ULURP action. It's a wholesale

          6  short-term lease approved by the SBS Commissioner.

          7                 We then are coming to you today with

          8  Related to propose the retail development which does

          9  require a ULURP action.

         10                 So, at this point Related is both the

         11  wholesale market lessor, they're the landlord to the

         12  existing tenants, they are also proposing a new

         13  retail development.

         14                 So, that is a short version. I don't

         15  know if I've confused more than I helped you.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: No, that was

         17  very enlightening, and for those who know that

         18  history already, I apologize. But I think we all

         19  have to be brought up to speed on it before we vote

         20  on this project.

         21                 In essence, though, I mean Related is

         22  now acting in a significant redevelopment project

         23  that includes disposition of City lands, demappings,

         24  rezonings, but had never gone through an RPF process

         25  to be the redevelopment manager on this site?
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          2                 MR. ALPER: Because it wasn't our

          3  property. The problem is that Buntzman wouldn't talk

          4  to us. We had no dialogue with Buntzman. The Court

          5  suggested that, or the mediator suggested that

          6  Buntzman try to find a developer to work with to

          7  increase value, but Buntzman had a lease that went

          8  to 2052, I believe, so the lease expired in --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: What was the

         10  year of that?

         11                 MR. ALPER: 2052 Buntzman's lease

         12  expired. This guy had negotiated a great deal with

         13  the previous Administration, you know, back in the

         14  seventies, and had economic rights to the property

         15  until 2052. We were stuck. We had decaying property,

         16  it was a blight. It was really under developed, in

         17  terms of its full potential, and we had no ability

         18  to RFP it, we didn't control it.

         19                 It was only by Related reaching a

         20  deal with Buntzman to take over that wholesale

         21  market lease, and Related came to us as the new

         22  entity and said we'll negotiate a deal with you. We

         23  had no ability to do an RFP.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I understand

         25  that, and certainly I will take the opportunity
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          2  between now and the vote to review the legalities of

          3  that specific action as to the market itself. But

          4  now the role has expanded beyond the market to

          5  include this whole major piece of property and a

          6  whole redevelopment plan that in many ways, the way

          7  it's come to us, has defied the normal open contract

          8  bidding process that we're required to do under

          9  Charter.

         10                 MR. ALPER: Well, I'll say two things.

         11  First, I advise you to look at the Judge's opinion

         12  which really was unusual in its clarity. You know,

         13  most opinions are quite equivocal, this one was

         14  black and white in terms of the legal conclusions.

         15  But you can look at that on your own.

         16                 What I would say is, you know, if

         17  Buntzman had come to us with a retail plan, we would

         18  be in the same place. We had economic rights to the

         19  property til 2052. Buntzman could have come to the

         20  City with a redevelopment plan, and we would have

         21  been here before you with the existing landlord.

         22                 The tenants were mostly

         23  month-to-month leases. And it was they entered into

         24  commercial transactions with their then landlord

         25  Buntzman.
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          2                 So, the fact that Related came in is

          3  a transaction with Buntzman, we had to be a party

          4  because we had to agree that we would support

          5  Related's retail plan, but articulated out, just

          6  assume Buntzman had come to us with a redevelopment

          7  proposal for a million square feet of retail in the

          8  Bronx, we would have all been elated and we'd be

          9  here talking about that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: But not to

         11  the expanded scope of this project. I mean, Buntzman

         12  didn't have the control of all the property that

         13  we're talking about, all the City dispositions.

         14                 MR. ALPER: Yes. With the exception of

         15  Men's House of Detention. And the history of that is

         16  that NYC 2012 was looking for sites for Olympic

         17  venues. 2012 approached Related and said would you

         18  be willing to give up the site on the Harlem River,

         19  the velodrome site we now call it, for an Olympic

         20  venue if we get the Olympics?

         21                 Related said, well, that doesn't work

         22  because we need a certain number of square feet to

         23  make the project work.

         24                 We then realized and I think Related

         25  came to us and said would you be willing to swap the
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          2  Men's House of Detention with the velodrome site,

          3  it's roughly the same acreage? We looked at it and

          4  said, yes, that makes sense. So, with the exception

          5  of the Men's House of Detention, the site is the

          6  same.

          7                 And I'm sorry, and Related also

          8  agreed to give up the northern park land parcel to

          9  help the Yankee Stadium Plan to mitigate the

         10  parkland laws from Yankee Stadium.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: It's almost

         12  like Related is an extra arm of government here.

         13                 So, let me ask this, I don't want to

         14  belabor this point --

         15                 MR. ALPER: I don't think that's

         16  accurate.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: That's the

         18  impression I'm getting. I don't want to belabor this

         19  point, there are other issues that I want to talk

         20  about. If I could just ask you before the vote that

         21  we be provided with the legal documentation, if you

         22  will, showing the court's decision, showing where

         23  Buntzman was, showing the parameters of the property

         24  and allaying the concerns I have, that we're sort of

         25  taking this outside of the normal contracting, you

                                                            48

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  know, RFP process that we deal with. I'd appreciate

          3  that.

          4                 MR. ALPER: That's very fair.

          5  Certainly.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          7  Monserrate.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you

          9  very much, Mr. Chair.

         10                 I just want to say that Council

         11  Member McMahon actually raised a lot of the issues

         12  that I wanted to raise.

         13                 The only thing I will draw a

         14  comparison in, in the Willet's Point Project in

         15  Queens, which lies in my district, where it appears

         16  that the EDC has taken a different approach,

         17  eliciting proposals, RFPs, or reviewing them and so

         18  forth, which is not the case in the Bronx Terminal

         19  Market process, can you explain the difference

         20  between those two projects?

         21                 In Queens you had the project or the

         22  potential project that lies on privately-owned

         23  property which is not even City-owned, but yet there

         24  is an RFP process there. And here where you have

         25  majority City-owned property there was no RFP. Can
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          2  you explain the difference in those two projects?

          3                 MR. ALPER: The primary difference is

          4  that Related approach Buntzman, or Buntzman

          5  approached related, you have to ask them how that

          6  happened, and came to us with a proposal which we

          7  were prepared to support.

          8                 The case of Willet's Point, which

          9  will be a major urban renewal if the project goes

         10  forward, to remove 55 acres of true blight, and to

         11  develop that important part of Queens.

         12                 But there is no party coming to us.

         13  You know, there is nobody that controls all of

         14  Willet's Point. It's many, many, many different land

         15  owners.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Privately

         17  owned, that's not City-owned.

         18                 MR. ALPER: And in the case of the

         19  Bronx Terminal Market, it was one landlord on

         20  City-owned property, and that landlord reached a

         21  deal with Related subject to our willingness to

         22  support the retail project. It's a very different

         23  fact pattern.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I guess I

         25  would assume that the City would have much more
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          2  leverage in the Bronx where the property was

          3  City-owned even though it was leased to Buntzman to

          4  ensure a process that was, quite frankly, more

          5  transparent.

          6                 MR. ALPER: Well, I know it's not your

          7  district, but what would you have done with it?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: No, it's

          9  not my district. My district is in Queens.

         10                 MR. ALPER: Right. So, what would you

         11  have done with this?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Well, I

         13  think I would have put forward RFPs, and I would

         14  have also ensured back then -- there's two issues

         15  with respect to the RFP that I think are important

         16  to note. In the June hearing that we had here in

         17  Contracts, you testified that there was never an

         18  appraisal done so the City didn't know what the

         19  property was worth and there was no need for the

         20  City to do the appraisal. That was your testimony in

         21  June.

         22                 MR. ALPER: And that is still correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: It's still

         24  correct. And I just want to again raise the issue

         25  for my colleagues who might not have been in that
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          2  Committee hearing, that we entered into this

          3  multi-million dollar deal for how many millions it

          4  is, who knows, because the City never, or EDC and/or

          5  the City, the Administration, never bothered to have

          6  an appraisal done.

          7                 So, I find it interesting how we can

          8  sole source multi-million dollar deals in the City

          9  of New York with no appraisals.

         10                 But I think in essence the issue --

         11                 MR. ALPER: I'm not going to let you

         12  get away with that comment, though, because it shows

         13  a continued lack of understanding of what we have at

         14  hand here.

         15                 We were in litigation with Buntzman.

         16  We were about to go to trial for damages. The

         17  estimate was, you know, up to 100 million. His claim

         18  was $100 million. We were likely to have a

         19  settlement certainly in the tens of millions of

         20  dollars against the City.

         21                 The clock was running. The court said

         22  if you can mediate this, great. If not, we're going

         23  to trial. A very, very bad outcome was to have the

         24  City pay, let's pick the middle, $50 million in

         25  damages and still have Buntzman control the site til
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          2  2052.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right.

          4                 MR. ALPER: That would have been a

          5  complete waste of taxpayers' money, the blight would

          6  have remained, there would be no development. It's

          7  very different at Willet's Point. See, you have to

          8  make sure you understand the facts before you try to

          9  draw comparisons.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Let me

         11  say, if I accept what you're stating as completely

         12  factual for the moment, that has nothing to do with

         13  the Buntzman -- the Buntzman properties has nothing

         14  to do with the House of Detention, where the House

         15  of Detention sat, where that track of land and where

         16  that building is. That is completely separate and

         17  apart and completely City-owned, where there were no

         18  private leases held by anyone other than the City's

         19  sole ownership.

         20                 On that property which was offered to

         21  Related, there was no appraisal either, and it was

         22  given as part of this package to Related. Is that

         23  not the fact?

         24                 MR. ALPER: Yes. Related has given up

         25  two properties that were part of their lease.  They

                                                            53

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  have given up the northern parcel for the Yankees,

          3  and the southern parcel they had originally given up

          4  if we got the Olympics, they've now agreed to

          5  relinquish the velodrome site for other uses.

          6                 So, they gave up part of what was

          7  part of their lease in exchange for acreage that's

          8  essentially equivalent acreage in the Men's House of

          9  Detention versus the velodrome site. That was a

         10  trade that we thought made sense, it will now be

         11  part of the ULURP action.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:

         13  Understood.

         14                 Again, with respect to that property,

         15  there was no appraisal offered on that property

         16  either before this.

         17                 MR. ALPER: No --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: In other

         19  words, before the Administration, before EDC

         20  approved or was part of this switch of properties,

         21  one for the other, we never had an appraisal on what

         22  the property that the City owned at the House of

         23  Detention was worth.

         24                 MR. ALPER: That's correct. And you

         25  have made the point that it's on the books, the
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          2  City's books. And I think you said, I can't remember

          3  the number now, it was $41 million I think you said

          4  it was appraised out. It shows a lack of

          5  understanding because the Department of Finance, as

          6  you should know, for government owned buildings

          7  doesn't use market value appraisals. They use

          8  historical cost, appreciated historical cost, which

          9  has no bearing on current market value, and if you

         10  call them they'll tell you, they don't try to

         11  approximate current market value, when they appraise

         12  City-owned property, because City-owned property

         13  doesn't pay taxes. So, it's sort of irrelevant.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right. But

         15  if the City of New York decided to have an open bid,

         16  an auction off that property, I'm sure that it would

         17  have been worth quite a substantial amount.

         18                 MR. ALPER: As would the velodrome

         19  site and the park parcel. The velodrome site is

         20  probably worth more because it's waterfront, which

         21  is what I said before. So, we basically, we

         22  basically had Related agree to give back waterfront

         23  site, very valuable, especially in the Bronx, which

         24  needs more park land, in exchange for an upland

         25  portion with an empty jail on it. I think it's a
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          2  great deal for the community personally, and I

          3  think, you know, we'll see what the local Council

          4  members think about it.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I have two

          6  or three more questions.

          7                 The velodrome site that you are

          8  speaking to, what is the proposed plan for

          9  development on that specific site, the velodrome?

         10                 MR. ALPER: Well, it's still under

         11  discussion. We think that the best use for that is

         12  park land. If you basically make the velodrome site

         13  park land, you'll have continuous waterfront park

         14  land from 149th Street, all the way north into the

         15  Yankee Stadium Plan.

         16                 You know, we know that one of the

         17  community's biggest objections to the Yankee Stadium

         18  plan is park land mitigation. And the Bronx, lots of

         19  parts of New York City but especially the Bronx

         20  really needs open space, and we think that's

         21  probably the highest and best use of the land at

         22  this point, but it's still under consideration.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Well, the

         24  issue of the current tenants there, the Bronx

         25  Terminal Market, the merchants, and understanding
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          2  that roughly 25 percent of them have negotiated some

          3  type of agreement with EDC and the City, still

          4  leaves three-quarters of them out.

          5                 And as my colleagues have pointed

          6  out, they, in June, I think everyone at that hearing

          7  left with the understanding that EDC was going to be

          8  very aggressive in attempting to negotiate something

          9  with the tenants to try to make them whole, to

         10  relocate them, to keep them together as a market

         11  which is what I believe makes them the most viable

         12  for this entire City.

         13                 Has there been any counter-offer by

         14  EDC? I know that the testimony today says there's a

         15  meeting tomorrow, but has EDC made a counter offer?

         16                 MR. ALPER: We've met with them

         17  numerous times. We've shown them properties, with

         18  the Bronx Delegation, we met with them. We said here

         19  is the information we need to understand what

         20  incentives make sense, and we virtually got nothing

         21  back.

         22                 They remain fixated on building a

         23  single market, which we said, I said in June and

         24  I've said consistently since then, we don't believe

         25  it's feasible.
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          2                 So, we have shown them with our

          3  consultant Cornerstone 30 properties, I think

          4  they've actually seen 20 of them, and they remain

          5  fixated on a plan that we don't think is realistic.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Are there

          7  any plans in this proposal to bring in big box

          8  stores?

          9                 MR. ALPER: You'll have to ask

         10  Related.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay, then

         12  Mr. Related, I'm directing the question to you.

         13                 MR. MASYR: Yes. The presentation that

         14  you saw before has spaces for large scale retail.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay. So

         16  the question, so that we're clear on my question, do

         17  the plans include bringing in a big box store?

         18                 MR. MASYR: Well, if by big box store

         19  you mean large scale retail --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right.

         21                 MR. MASYR: The answer is yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay.

         23                 I received an interesting e-mail from

         24  a Mr. Lucas, I think it is. I'm sure my colleagues

         25  received it also. And he's on the community board.
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          2  Lucas Herbert. Mr. Lucas Herbert, who sent me a

          3  12-page e-mail. I just finished reading it this

          4  morning, talking about some of the concerns that he

          5  has raised, and specifically to the fact that both

          6  the development of the market and the Yankee Stadium

          7  plan have been treated as two separate developments,

          8  and not combined as to what their environmental

          9  impact will be to the residents of that neighborhood

         10  and to the entire borough.

         11                 How would you respond to that?

         12                 MR. MASYR: I'll try and respond to

         13  that.

         14                 Lucas was on the community board. We

         15  met in committee with him many times over both

         16  projects, the community board ultimately supported

         17  the projects substantially.

         18                 The Environmental Impact Statement

         19  for the Bronx Terminal Market project runs the

         20  traffic numbers without the Yankee Stadium in season

         21  because that is in fact the primary retail seasons.

         22  It also runs the numbers, has run the numbers with

         23  Yankee Stadium in operation.

         24                 Yankee Stadium, I remind you, and

         25  we'll have plenty of time for this in the future,
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          2  Yankee Stadium is basically the same size project in

          3  basically the same location in terms of highway

          4  access, and so it is not -- it itself is not adding

          5  new traffic to the neighborhood, to the network. And

          6  we have run the numbers showing the traffic impacts

          7  and they are mitigated impacts with Yankee Stadium

          8  on a game day, as well as the shopping center in

          9  operation.

         10                 So, they were treated as a whole for

         11  the traffic and in other parts of the Environmental

         12  Impact Statement.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: That was,

         14  I'm assuming, forwarded to this Committee? Was that

         15  ever forwarded to this Committee?

         16                 MR. MASYR: Sorry. Definitely the EIS

         17  was forwarded to Council staff early on in the

         18  process.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Out of

         20  respect for my colleagues, I will not continue to

         21  ask questions. I have a few more if there is some

         22  time afterwards, but I just wanted to say that it is

         23  incredibly interesting to me how we can find

         24  thousands and thousands of square footage of big box

         25  stores, but not find it in our plans to keep the
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          2  merchants that have been there for so many years in

          3  the Bronx.

          4                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          5                 MR. MASYR: Mr. Chairman, just could I

          6  clarify one thing the Council member said?

          7                 The individual who sent you the

          8  e-mail, I believe that the record will show that he

          9  voted for the project.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Yes, in

         11  the e-mail he explains that he voted for it, with

         12  the understanding that there were going to be

         13  certain things done and that they weren't done, and

         14  now he's asking us not to vote for this project

         15  because he feels that there was a lot of

         16  shortcomings with, quite frankly, on your part and

         17  on the part of EDC and what has been presented.

         18  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: As Council Member

         20  Monserrate pointed out, I think we all got a copy of

         21  that e-mail. It might be helpful, I'd like to share

         22  it with you, and maybe you could respond to the

         23  individual concerns that he's brought up.

         24                 MR. MASYR: Very much so.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member
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          2  Gioia.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you.

          4  There is not someone before me? Okay, thank you very

          5  much.

          6                 And I'm sorry, if those in the Bronx

          7  Delegation and others are more familiar with this

          8  than I am, but I just want to follow up on

          9  Councilman McMahon's question. I just want to get

         10  the time line on this.

         11                 So, Mr. Buntzman has a suit against

         12  the City, which 50 million, 75 million, whatever it

         13  is, and it's moving towards mediation. Related gets

         14  involved. And then Related comes to the City or the

         15  City goes to Related and says can you intervene and

         16  help us out here?

         17                 MR. ALPER: Two separate things.

         18                 First, Deputy Mayor Doctoroff, who we

         19  all know is friends with Steve Ross, the head of

         20  Related, at some point early in the Administration

         21  -- let me actually back up a couple of steps. I

         22  would say in the first month or two that we were in

         23  office Dan and I met with Adolfo Carrion and toured

         24  the Bronx, and we stood in the parking lot of the

         25  Bronx Terminal Market. We heard the Borough
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          2  President talk about his vision for a new Yankee

          3  Stadium, and about trying to remove the blight at

          4  the Bronx Terminal Market.

          5                 Some time after that, Dan called

          6  Steve Ross and said, you know, we have this thing in

          7  the Bronx, I don't know if you're familiar with it,

          8  take a look, just let me know whether you think

          9  retail makes any sense there, because we need to do

         10  something with it. And that was the extent of Dan's

         11  conversation with Steve Ross.

         12                 We understand that Buntzman had

         13  talked to Related before we came into office, among

         14  other developers, about redevelopment plans, and

         15  after the mediator proposed that, Buntzman tried to

         16  find a developer to increase value. At that point

         17  Related and Buntzman started talking to each other.

         18                 They came to us jointly and said

         19  here's the deal we've cut, it requires the City to

         20  agree to support a retail plan; do you support it?

         21  And for us that was a win/win, to be able to get rid

         22  of the Buntzman lease, to have a major

         23  redevelopment, thousands of jobs created, and from

         24  our side, not a lot of downside. There's been one

         25  thing that kept showing up in the newspaper that's
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          2  really always mischaracterized and that is, quote,

          3  guaranteed Related that if it doesn't work, they get

          4  their money back. Let me explain what that really

          5  means. Related basically bought out the Buntzman

          6  lease for $42 million. If we could have done that,

          7  if Buntzman would have talked to us, remember, let's

          8  use 50 as mid-point, we were facing a settlement of

          9  $50 million, we believe, plus or minus, and if

         10  somebody came to us and said, would you pay $50

         11  million to settle litigation and get the property

         12  back? We would have said yes in a heartbeat. Okay?

         13                 So, our down side with this proposal

         14  was that Related proposes a million square foot

         15  retail, if for whatever reason you all turn it down,

         16  then we end up buying out Related's position, okay?

         17                 So, the deal actually from our side,

         18  didn't have a lot of down side.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: More from

         20  Related's side. I mean, Related is looking at -- so,

         21  they buy a leasehold --

         22                 MR. ALPER: No, Related's down side

         23  was this has been incredibly time consuming, and

         24  they have opportunities, made for the developers, so

         25  --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: For their

          3  capital.

          4                 So, Related for 42 million buys the

          5  leasehold til 2052, right? Is that right?

          6                 MR. ALPER: They basically buy out

          7  Buntzman's position. They enter into a short-term

          8  wholesale market lease which under the City Charter

          9  can be approved by the Commissioner of SBS without a

         10  ULURP action. And they propose a retail

         11  redevelopment.

         12                 Did I get that precisely? Yes, part

         13  of the retail development is a new long-term lease

         14  in the property. They bought out Related's position

         15  -- sorry, bought out Buntzman's position for $42

         16  million.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: But Buntzman's

         18  position was a leasehold on the property, no?

         19                 MR. ALPER: Til 2052 as a wholesale

         20  market. That's why it required the City to say yes

         21  we support this.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: I got ya.

         23                 MR. ALPER: The action we entered into

         24  is a five-year wholesale market lease, which doesn't

         25  require any other approval. We do it all the time
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          2  for wholesale markets.

          3                 Part of their proposal with Buntzman,

          4  though, and with us was that they would then propose

          5  a long-term lease and say retail market, and then we

          6  would support their application, which is what we're

          7  here doing today.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: And how long is

          9  that leasehold application?

         10                 MR. ALPER: Forty-nine year and there

         11  are two options. So, ten-year options to get to 99

         12  years total.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: So, Related's

         14  point of view, for $42 million they get to move

         15  forward, and I imagine, it's a million square foot

         16  of retail, is it?

         17                 MR. ALPER: They are proposing a

         18  million square foot project, right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Can they

         20  estimate, Mr. Masyr, how much per square foot this

         21  retail is going to go for?

         22                 MR. MASYR: We really don't know at

         23  this point. It only has to be competitive with

         24  borough market retail rates.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Which are?

                                                            66

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 MR. MASYR: For these kinds of large

          3  users, their numbers are in the $30 range.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Do the math for

          5  me. What does that come out to?

          6                 MR. MASYR: Thirty dollars times

          7  950,000. I went to law school like you did.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Two lawyers.

          9  Someone will do the math for us.

         10                 Okay, I guess what I'm looking at

         11  from Related's point of view, they make a wager,

         12  they buy this for $42 million, if they can't build a

         13  million square foot of retail, they get their money

         14  back. What they lose is that time value of money and

         15  the time value of their staff for the year -- how

         16  long has it been a year?

         17                 MR. MASYR: Over two years.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Two years. The

         19  two years that they could have built something else

         20  somewhere with that $42 million. Presumably -- well,

         21  I don't know this, but I imagine they're probably --

         22  are they using their own money, or are they

         23  leveraging it somewhere else? I mean, the best is to

         24  use somebody else's money to do this, right?

         25                 MR. MASYR: Right now they're using
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          2  their own money to go through, as you know, an

          3  extraordinarily expensive process.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: They've paid

          5  $42 million to Buntzman? Has that left them?

          6                 MR. MASYR: They have, I believe they

          7  borrowed that money on their credit, yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Right. That's

          9  what I was saying. So, they didn't actually use

         10  their own money, they borrowed.

         11                 MR. MASYR: When you sign the loan,

         12  it's your own money.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Well, they're

         14  paying the interest on it, fair enough.

         15                 So, they borrowed $42 million to give

         16  to Buntzman on the idea that they're going to build

         17  a million square feet of retail, which they want to

         18  sell or lease for 30 approximately, or they probably

         19  hope for more, $30 per square foot. If they can't

         20  get the million square feet, the sell it back to the

         21  City for the 42 million. So, their potential, you

         22  know, their only potential loss here is their time

         23  for the two years and the interest they're paying on

         24  the $42 million debt service, right?

         25                 Say what? I can't hear you.
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          2                 MR. ADASKO: The design, and ULURP and

          3  all of that, there's a substantial transaction cost.

          4  And the cost of ULURP, design, environmental review,

          5  and all of that, which is a substantial transaction

          6  cost.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: President

          8  Alper, how many jobs is this going to create?

          9                 MR. ALPER: Roughly 5,000. It's 2,300

         10  or 400 permanent jobs, and roughly the same number

         11  of construction jobs.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: And, so, even

         13  if this is, and I think this goes to part of the

         14  heart of the issue and a problem, even if this is

         15  the best deal, the most incredible deal the City

         16  could ever have, thousands of jobs, new shopping in

         17  the Bronx, et cetera, et cetera, I think, you know,

         18  part of the controversy becomes when it seems all

         19  too close. And I think that's part of the reason of

         20  sunlight, and that's why I try to ask the time line

         21  questions.

         22                 I don't mean to imply impropriety at

         23  all, I really don't. But the specter of that is

         24  always out there when there are such close

         25  relationships. When I look at this from the Related
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          2  point of view, it sounds to me like it's going to be

          3  a pretty good deal, and I wonder who else wouldn't

          4  have taken that deal. And I think that then becomes

          5  the question that people ask, and when the

          6  relationships are so deep and there's only one

          7  bidder on it, I think that's why I think when people

          8  begin to have concerns. I think that's part of how

          9  this process can be helpful.

         10                 MR. ALPER: Yes, we welcome the

         11  transparency. That's why I'm personally here today.

         12  I don't normally come to the Land Use type hearings,

         13  but this is very important and we take transparency,

         14  we welcome transparency, and we're actually zero

         15  bidders. This does not bid out at all. It is a good

         16  deal for Related, undoubtedly, it's a great deal for

         17  the City. We get tax revenue we weren't getting

         18  before. We get more economic value out of the

         19  property. But I stand by this transaction a hundred

         20  percent. You know, whatever it looks like, again,

         21  ask yourself the question, if you were in our shoes

         22  facing a trial or damages, where you expect to lose

         23  tens of millions of dollars and still have this guy

         24  control the property, what would you have done? And

         25  people just can't seem to remember that we had no
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          2  options. We were in a really, really terrible

          3  position. That's what's different here, is that we

          4  didn't control the property. We had a landlord who

          5  did control it who was not talking to us. This guy

          6  actually passed away a year ago. He was nides

          7  (phonetic) he was cantankerous at best, and he just

          8  was saying no to us. We had no way to settle this,

          9  which is why the mediator was brought in and

         10  proposed this alternative.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Okay, fair

         12  enough. And by the way, thank you for being down

         13  here, because you illuminate these things and open

         14  it up quite a bit.

         15                 You know, I mean and the challenge of

         16  your job is that it's always easier to play Monday

         17  morning quarterback and tell you you could have got

         18  a better deal. I think you know one of the things

         19  about trying to pick good people is that you hope

         20  that they're just going out there and getting the

         21  very best deal, as you know, and if I was looking to

         22  negotiate a deal, if I was Related or I was somebody

         23  else or I was the Mayor, I would certainly be happy

         24  to have you at the negotiating table negotiating

         25  that deal for me.
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          2                 And when you look at Buntzman, I

          3  suppose Buntzman probably would have accepted less,

          4  but then he did accept less. I mean, he was walking

          5  into a lawsuit, you were walking into a lawsuit, and

          6  he settled with Related for substantially less than

          7  what you were worried about. But you never know that

          8  when you walk into a lawsuit.

          9                 So, if this application were turned

         10  down, from the City's point of view, if this

         11  application is turned down, Related gets bought out

         12  by the City for $42 million, which is a better

         13  settlement than we could have hoped from Buntzman,

         14  as a City, right? So, basically we're buying back

         15  the leasehold for $42 million, we've got control of

         16  the property. We could then RFP this, couldn't we?

         17  And say --

         18                 MR. ADASKO: I was going to say, yes,

         19  but there would be a substantial delay in jobs and

         20  economic activity and construction activity and the

         21  opportunity for Bronx residents to shop in the Bronx

         22  and not have to travel to Yonkers for the same

         23  stores.

         24                 MR. ALPER: I believe that the buyout

         25  occurs in 2009; is that correct? Does anybody know
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          2  behind me?

          3                 Yes, we would actually end up buying

          4  them out. They have a five-year wholesale market

          5  lease from 2004. So, 2009, the City would then buy

          6  out Related's position. We would then go through a

          7  process, so it would be 2011 realistically before we

          8  were back with a development project in the Bronx.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Why wouldn't we

         10  just -- because when I vote on this I want to be

         11  clear, if this goes down, why wouldn't we then,

         12  knowing that we're going to be buying this out in

         13  2009, in four years for 42 million, why wouldn't we

         14  then begin the process and RFP this?

         15                 MR. ALPER: Again we don't control it.

         16  It's the same problem I had with Buntzman --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Well, we will

         18  control it in '09, no?

         19                 MR. ALPER: No. Related has a

         20  five-year wholesale market lease.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Right.

         22                 MR. ALPER: That was the transaction

         23  that was entered into under the City Charter. And

         24  that was one of the subjects to the litigation --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: The short-term

                                                            73

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  lease.

          3                 MR. ALPER: Right.

          4                 So, they have a five-year lease that

          5  expires in 2009. If they chose to, they could

          6  negotiate with us and do something sooner, but

          7  otherwise we have no power. We entered into a

          8  five-year economic deal with Related.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: And post that

         10  we would then --

         11                 MR. ALPER: Post that, 2009 we would

         12  be able to buy them out, and then go through a

         13  selection process, which as you know, takes, you

         14  know, a lengthy amount of time. So, it's probably,

         15  you know, 2010, 2011 before we would be back before

         16  whatever committee was in place in that year, none

         17  of us will be in the room presumably --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: The Charter

         19  will be abolishing the City Council by then.

         20                 MR. ALPER: No comment.

         21                 But presumably we would be back in

         22  2010 or '11 with a new proposal for development.

         23                 In the meantime though, as Mr. Adasko

         24  said, we would end up with certainly

         25  under-development in that part of the Bronx for the
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          2  next five years.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you very

          4  much for your time.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          6  Sears.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you, Mr.

          8  Chair. I'm catching up on this project, so I just

          9  have one or two questions for clarification.

         10                 We're talking about a lot of square

         11  footage. In development plans, you must have some

         12  preconceived idea as to your tenancy mix. Can you

         13  share with us what tenancy mix you're looking at?

         14                 MR. MASYR: Yes. We have both a

         15  preconceived idea and a preconceived hope.

         16                 What we're trying to do is to make

         17  available in this development space for those large

         18  scale and mid-size national retailers and otherwise

         19  that exist in New York City, but don't exist in the

         20  Bronx.

         21                 That is not to say that Bronx

         22  residents don't know about them, and it's not to say

         23  that Bronx residents don't shop at them. It's merely

         24  to say they don't shop at them in the Bronx.

         25                 So, the nature, would we like to
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          2  bring in a large discount department store or large

          3  clothing store, large sporting good store, to have

          4  the opportunity to have a large electronic store, to

          5  have home good stores, that all exist in every

          6  borough in substantial numbers, and really don't

          7  exist in the Bronx. The Bronx residents currently

          8  either having to travel to Yonkers or to Jersey or

          9  not have these opportunities at all.

         10                 So, that's the nature of the tenancy.

         11  It's sort of, if you've seen it, you know, in

         12  Queens, Brooklyn and Staten Island, we're hoping

         13  that we can somehow encourage them to come to the

         14  Bronx. The fact of the matter is, many of them are

         15  not in the Bronx, yet they are in New York City

         16  substantially, at numerous locations in New York, in

         17  other boroughs, but have chosen not to be in the

         18  Bronx. We think the economics will be self-evident

         19  to them that the Bronx is a great place to locate,

         20  and that Bronx residents will be spending their

         21  dollars at home helping employ Bronx citizens.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Can you tell

         23  me, what is the economic profile of the area in

         24  which you will be developing?

         25                 MR. MASYR: The immediate
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          2  neighborhood?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Yes.

          4                 MR. MASYR: We are in one of the

          5  poorest congressional districts in the City, the

          6  State and perhaps even the country. We're very

          7  mindful of that. That's why we think that pedestrian

          8  access to the site was so important, because we knew

          9  we had a large population near us, plus one that

         10  doesn't have the highest automobile ownership, the

         11  Bronx in general doesn't.

         12                 So, we have been trying to utilize

         13  the ability to get people to the site, both by mass

         14  transit and through actually walking to the site.

         15  That's what makes the site kind of unique in that

         16  regard.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: So, when you're

         18  looking at this tenancy mix, and you're looking at

         19  the large boxes that come in, and I understand

         20  development and I understand its process and what

         21  have you, so my questions are not really naive; will

         22  the tenancy mix take into consideration the poorest

         23  areas that you're talking about of which this would

         24  be servicing?

         25                 And I know that you can't control
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          2  what people do and policies, but actually it would

          3  seem to me it's a very important issue, that if it's

          4  in the poorest congressional district of the City,

          5  that your proposed tenants would be a big

          6  consideration to you, if you're looking at servicing

          7  the constituents of the Bronx.

          8                 MR. MASYR: I think you're right. I

          9  think we are mindful of it in two ways. One

         10  physically, there is local retail that is going to

         11  be part of this. One of the things that we are

         12  committed to doing is making an extraordinary effort

         13  to have a preference, if you will, for that local

         14  retail for people already in the retail business in

         15  the area, as a way to expand, or move their

         16  businesses, but to keep that local flavor.

         17                 And I don't disagree with you,

         18  Councilwoman, that we have to, as developers, be

         19  sensitive to the kinds of retail practices of

         20  tenants that are ultimately going to want to come

         21  here, that it be sensitive to the surrounding area,

         22  and the unique characteristic of that area. We don't

         23  disagree.

         24                 MR. ALPER: It is also why the

         25  Administration is in support of the project overall,
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          2  because it's 5,000 jobs, many which will go to local

          3  residents, who really sorely need jobs.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Those are

          5  temporary jobs.

          6                 MR. ALPER: No, they're actually not.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: You just stated

          8  that 2,300 would be permanent jobs.

          9                 MR. ALPER: That's a lot of jobs.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I know that.

         11                 MR. ALPER: Permanent jobs.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And we know

         13  that, so I'm not disagreeing with you.

         14                 MR. ALPER: Right.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I mean, I'm not

         16  even disagreeing with the temporary jobs. My focus

         17  is, to be very clear, is that because it is in the

         18  poorest congressional district, and I know that in

         19  very poor districts, there are programs that assist

         20  the poor, predominantly women, such as WIC, Women,

         21  Infants and Children, and not every store accepts

         22  that.

         23                 There are other programs that are for

         24  women, as well as for men that are in the lower

         25  economic level. So what I think I am encouraging you
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          2  to do, is to look at your retailing mix, to see that

          3  that economic level is not blotted out, because that

          4  would be extremely discriminatory. I mean, I'm not

          5  attacking you, I'm just making a point that I think

          6  that retailing in that area, you need to consider

          7  that particular population.

          8                 MR. MASYR: We agree.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: You agree. So,

         10  we'll have that on the record. Mr. Chair, you will

         11  remember they agree. Thank you very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We have one more

         13  Council Member on the list to ask questions, but

         14  before I get to him, a question has come up that

         15  we've been discussing ourselves; under the

         16  short-term lease, how much does Related pay the

         17  City?

         18                 MR. ALPER: I believe it's $250,000 a

         19  year. Is that correct? So, Buntzman was paying, I

         20  think 120. Actually, wasn't paying. He was supposed

         21  to be paying 120. He wasn't paying us at all. But

         22  Related, I believe during the wholesale market lease

         23  is paying 250. The number, once the temporary

         24  certificate of occupancy is received goes to 500

         25  with an offset, because the City bought back the
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          2  northern portion of the site for the Yankee Stadium

          3  mitigation. And rather than pay them one sum amount,

          4  we basically financed it. So, we reduced the rent to

          5  I think $341,000 a year for the base rent, and then

          6  there's a participation based on gross sales in the

          7  project.

          8                 In addition, the property tax, they

          9  will pay full property tax with the normal ICIP

         10  abatement, and that will be substantially higher

         11  than what we were getting out of the property as a

         12  wholesale market.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         14                 Council Member Seabrook.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you

         16  very much, Mr. Chairman.

         17                 Just a couple of questions perhaps

         18  with -- Councilman McMahon raised the issue of the

         19  arrangement that had taken place, but I think if we

         20  move the arrangement back to the original holder of

         21  the lease, who had a, I think it was a 99-year

         22  lease, maybe, and he was 80 or more, you got a guy

         23  that's 80 with an 80-year lease, and not moving and

         24  budging, and so the arrangement that had to be made,

         25  I think it's not the monetary value of what the City
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          2  or what Related, but the people of the Bronx would

          3  be the greatest losers in this situation.

          4                 I think if people look at that area,

          5  and the reason they probably gave him a 99-year

          6  lease, because they felt it was so dilapidated, I

          7  mean, the worst of conditions, and they said, well,

          8  you can have it, get it out of our hands. He thought

          9  that he could do something and he decided not to,

         10  because he could sit, didn't have to do anything,

         11  and so there was no development. I mean, the blight

         12  is just unbelievable. And the opportunity to develop

         13  this site, you know, I mean we can look and see how

         14  the arrangement, but I don't think that that's the

         15  issue as much as the issue of providing

         16  opportunities for the people who live in that

         17  community and see that blight each and every day,

         18  and the people who drive past it to go to other

         19  areas where our people have to drive to shop, so

         20  there's the dynamics. And I think that here is, this

         21  is probably the greatest opportunity for the City of

         22  New York to have an opportunity to create a jobs

         23  program and economic development program and

         24  opportunities to say that this is not the left-out

         25  group that's here in the Bronx, the worst. I mean,
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          2  this is synonymous with South Bronx, is synonymous

          3  with poverty, the Bronx is burning, et cetera. So,

          4  this is a golden opportunity, and I think the Bronx

          5  Delegation has met with Economic Development, has

          6  met with Related and others to talk about ways of

          7  how we plan to make this -- it's the Gateway, but

          8  this is considered really the gateway of

          9  opportunity, if we look at it. This is a tremendous

         10  opportunity for us to do some of the things. And I

         11  think that we all can work -- I'm going to cut it

         12  short, Mr. Chairman, I'm sorry -- but to pull this

         13  together and to make this happen.

         14                 Now, a few things: What is the

         15  average size of what one -- because we hear this box

         16  store, big; what's the square footage of the average

         17  box store?

         18                 MR. MASYR: Well, they're usually a

         19  combination. A typical discount department store is

         20  150,000 square feet, plus or minus. A smaller

         21  electronic store is a 50,000 square feet, 30 to

         22  50,000 square feet. So, it's a combination, and I'll

         23  remind you that this project also has small stores

         24  wrapping the exterior.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: So, in
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          2  actuality, you've got box stores in there? Well,

          3  based upon if it's 50,000 square feet, 60,000?

          4                 MR. MASYR: A combination of several

          5  stores that are over 100,000 square feet.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Right.

          7                 MR. MASYR: Several stores that are in

          8  the 50,000 square foot range, 80,000 square feet of

          9  very small stores.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Right. So,

         11  what I'm saying is that the definition might be who

         12  classifies and considers, but if you look at size,

         13  based upon here, you have box stores already. I'm

         14  looking at if you're saying the numbers.

         15                 MR. MASYR: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: So, it's a

         17  question of who is wearing the title and who is

         18  defining, the box stores are already there.

         19                 Now, the other point which I raise,

         20  is perhaps you can provide us with, if you can now

         21  or later, what are the percentages or the numbers,

         22  or if you can define these businesses that are there

         23  now, that are certified minority and women-owned

         24  businesses?

         25                 MR. ALPER: That are currently in the
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          2  market?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Right.

          4                 MR. ALPER: I have no idea.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Anybody

          6  know? Anybody out there? Somebody gotta say

          7  something.

          8                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE:

          9  Ninety percent.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Ninety

         11  percent are certified minority and woman-owned

         12  businesses that's in the market, okay.

         13                 MR. ALPER: I don't think that are

         14  certified by the City as minority and woman-owned

         15  businesses. They may be minority and woman-owned. I

         16  have no idea.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Well, we

         18  need to find that out. So, we need to find that out

         19  and see these businesses, and see if that's the

         20  case. And also how many of these are union shops?

         21  And when you find out and see the case. If you can

         22  provide us with that, I'd appreciate it. I think it

         23  makes sense to me.

         24                 MR. ALPER: I think you'll probably

         25  have members of the wholesale market testifying, I'm
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          2  assuming --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Oh, okay.

          4                 MR. ALPER: So you can ask them that

          5  question.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: I'm asking

          7  you. I thought maybe you had it.

          8                 MR. ALPER: We don't have that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: We'll ask

         10  and we'll find out.

         11                 MR. ALPER: We've actually been asking

         12  lots of questions and not getting many answers from

         13  them, so maybe you'll have better luck than we have.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Okay, I'm

         15  just here because I think it's important that we

         16  look at how we protect minority and woman-owned

         17  business, and that's an interest that I have, and i

         18  think that's an interest that should be addressed.

         19                 MR. ALPER: Yes. And we're hoping the

         20  Community Benefit Agreement also addresses that in

         21  terms of employment in the new project.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Well, I

         23  think that the Bronx Delegation is certainly on the

         24  case on that.

         25                 MR. ALPER: Oh, I'm sure.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: It's not

          3  going to happen if that don't happen.

          4                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We have one more

          6  Council member who has asked to speak and that is

          7  definitely going to be the last Council member

          8  because we do have 20 speakers who have signed up

          9  and we do want to hear from the public. I know that

         10  members of the public have been here for several

         11  hours now.

         12                 Council Member Palma.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Chair. And I promise to be brief.

         15                 Jesse, you have a big smile on your

         16  face. I've seen you more than I've seen my son in

         17  the last week.

         18                 I think Council Member Monserrate

         19  raised the issue of traffic, and I was looking at

         20  your presentation in the room and I know that a lot

         21  of us have seen that over and over again. My

         22  question and my concern is, you've made reference to

         23  the Brooklyn Gateway Center and how the traffic

         24  there, you know, how they took into account what

         25  kind of traffic was going to be coming there when
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          2  that project came to fruition. In the Bronx Gateway

          3  Center, we still have an issue of who the tenants

          4  are going to be that are coming into that area, and

          5  we also have Yankee Stadium, which is very adjacent.

          6  And your presentation was great at making the

          7  traffic flowing, but that's not the reality for us

          8  in the Bronx, and I have a huge concern when those

          9  projects come to fruition, what the traffic there

         10  will really look like, and what are -- how did your

         11  impact study mitigate, your traffic impact study

         12  mitigate any of the traffic issues, or any of the

         13  traffic concerns?

         14                 Because the reality is the traffic is

         15  not only going to come from the Deegan. People are

         16  going to try to find ways to get to the Center or to

         17  Yankee Stadium and it may spill into our local

         18  streets.

         19                 MR. MASYR: Thank you. Similarly, now,

         20  when you raised the Brooklyn Project and the traffic

         21  work that went on there, similarly that was done in

         22  the same methodology, since it's not any specific

         23  proposed tenant. You know, the agony of traffic

         24  isn't about the tenants, it's about the car. So,

         25  that study I think was a good indication that we
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          2  were able to manage traffic in an area that also has

          3  a lot of background congestion adjacent to the Belt

          4  Parkway, down the road from Kennedy Airport. So, not

          5  the same as the Yankee game, but there was a lot of

          6  traffic there also.

          7                 Our traffic report indicated that

          8  through a number of signal changes, additions of

          9  signals, that we were able to mitigate those

         10  impacts. The one area that we needed to do more in

         11  is that exist from 149th Street. We agree with you,

         12  all our traffic is not coming by major highways. In

         13  fact, we don't think the majority of our traffic is

         14  coming by major highways, it's really going to be

         15  coming from the community. But there we were able

         16  mitigate the traffic impact by expanding the width

         17  of the exit lane so cars that are queuing up to

         18  leave one won't back up onto the Major Deegan which

         19  is its own nightmare, and, two, be able to get

         20  through the street safely. Those are the issues.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you, Mr.

         23  Masyr.

         24                 In the presentation, the river water

         25  turned blue. Are we getting blue water?
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          2                 MS. MASYR: And the sun was also

          3  shining, so we'll take credit for both.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

          6  gentlemen.

          7                 I'm sure some of you will be

          8  remaining, obviously to sit through the public

          9  testimony. And just in case we have some questions

         10  at the end of the public testimony, I'd like

         11  somebody to be around.

         12                 What I will do is call a panel in

         13  favor, a panel in opposition, and we will keep going

         14  until we are done.

         15                 Each speaker will have two minutes. I

         16  ask that you try and keep to that time frame. I

         17  don't necessarily cut somebody off in the middle of

         18  a sentence, but please do not abuse the privilege.

         19                 The first panel will be in favor.

         20  Henry Kita from the Building Trades Employers

         21  Association was going to testify in favor and had to

         22  leave. He has given us testimony that will be

         23  entered into the record.

         24                 Vanessa Gibson from Assemblywoman

         25  Greene's Office; is she here? Ann Abraham Lindsey
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          2  from 161st Street Merchants Association. Luis Osorio

          3  from the Neighborhood Association for Intercultural

          4  Affairs, and is that Harry Bubbie, from the Friends

          5  of Bronx Park? Bubbin.

          6                 MS. GIBSON: Good morning. Thank you

          7  for the introduction. Again, my name is Vanessa

          8  Gibson.  I am the Chief of Staff for State

          9  Assemblywoman Aurelia Greene, and on her behalf, as

         10  she cannot be here this morning, I will read a

         11  prepared statement from her. Thank you.

         12                 Good morning, Chairwoman Katz, Land

         13  Use Committee members, Chairman Avella, and Zoning

         14  and Franchises Subcommittee members of the City

         15  Council. I am Assemblywoman Aurelia Greene, member

         16  of the Assembly, 77th District, and I am delighted

         17  to express today my support for the project

         18  currently before you, the Gateway Center at the

         19  Bronx Terminal Market.

         20                 The project represents a distinctive

         21  opportunity to transform and revitalize an area in

         22  the South Bronx that will reflect a 21st Century

         23  Bronx. I firmly support the Gateway Center, as I

         24  believe it will stimulate and create an economic

         25  boost for the Bronx and its community residents.
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          2                 For many years the Bronx Terminal

          3  Market was in dire straights, and had become a hot

          4  bed for illicit activity, drugs and other salacious

          5  crimes and was a great blight to our Bronx

          6  community. The lack of maintenance, structure and

          7  overall quality of life to conduct business was

          8  compromised, leading to inadequate services,

          9  businesses and caused many residents to seek goods

         10  and services in other locations in the Bronx and in

         11  other boroughs.

         12                 The area was an eyesore, neglected

         13  and underutilized, resulting in a loss of revenue

         14  for the Bronx and business owners, and a decline in

         15  the quality of life for neighboring residents.

         16                 We could no longer invest in this

         17  area, nor continue to watch its steady

         18  deterioration.

         19                 I have always had a vision for the

         20  future of the Bronx Terminal Market, a vision of

         21  economic stability and economic development to

         22  provide opportunities for my constituents and the

         23  Bronx residents. I am pleased that Related

         24  Companies, the new owner of the Bronx Terminal

         25  Market, shares my vision.
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          2                 The Bronx is booming and experiencing

          3  resurgence and comprehensive redevelopment and I

          4  believe the Gateway Center seeks to highlight what

          5  the Bronx has to offer. This essential project will

          6  reshape the way the Bronx previously viewed the

          7  market and helped to bolster its perception.

          8                 In addition, the Gateway Center will

          9  add economic value and serve as a tourist attraction

         10  and a community neighbor for commercial and retail

         11  businesses.

         12                 As the Gateway Center project has

         13  progressed and gained community awareness, a number

         14  of my constituents have contacted me to express

         15  their views and concerns.

         16                 Such concerns as employment

         17  opportunities, business development, traffic flow,

         18  air quality, health concerns, parking mass

         19  transportation, pollution, noise, construction and

         20  environmental issues have all been raised.

         21                 My colleagues, including the Assembly

         22  Members, the Senators, City Council, Bronx Borough

         23  President and I have diligently been working with

         24  Related Companies and the City of New York

         25  collectively to effectively address each of these
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          2  concerns.

          3                 The community has spoken, and we

          4  believe the concerns are valid and warrant a

          5  detailed analysis. Employment, and in particular,

          6  minority and woman-owned contracts is a key concern

          7  strongly voiced in the community. We must ensure

          8  that our young African-American and Latino men and

          9  women are afforded the opportunity to acquire

         10  adequate employment at the Gateway Center.

         11                 As the Bronx Borough President stated

         12  previously, the best social program is a job, and I

         13  echo the belief that employment is a giant step

         14  towards financial stability for residents and their

         15  families.

         16                 I believe that there is a great

         17  chance for the Gateway Center to provide

         18  apprenticeship programs, job training, workforce

         19  development, unionized construction jobs, and offer

         20  prospects for entrepreneurs to flourish.

         21                 The important concerns presented to

         22  me remain at the forefront of ongoing discussions,

         23  and I look to forward actively working with the

         24  Related Companies on addressing the community's

         25  concerns in a timely fashion.
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          2                 Throughout the duration of the Bronx

          3  Terminal Market's history, there were merchants who

          4  invested their life into operating their businesses

          5  at this site. The merchants played an integral role

          6  in the history of the market, providing an

          7  invaluable service to the Bronx and surrounding

          8  community.

          9                 The market merchants remained through

         10  the tough situations, often times facing a difficult

         11  survival. As the related companies proposes to

         12  implement a 1 million square foot retail and

         13  commercial shopping complex, I ask that my

         14  colleagues and I continue to work to assist with the

         15  continuing operation of the merchants' businesses in

         16  the Bronx. I remain optimistic that the Gateway

         17  Center Project proves to be beneficial to my

         18  constituents, residents of the Bronx and the City of

         19  New York.

         20                 The Gateway Center project

         21  demonstrates the vital need for economic activity in

         22  the South Bronx. I applaud the Related Companies for

         23  their commitment and diligence in working with the

         24  Bronx community.

         25                 I welcome the project as a beacon to
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          2  visitors and travelers to the South Bronx, and stand

          3  ready to continue a working relationship with the

          4  Related Companies in bringing this project to

          5  fruition.

          6                 I believe in the potential of the

          7  Gateway Center to offer the residents of the Bronx

          8  and the City of New York with the greatest

          9  opportunities for economic revitalization and an

         10  overall improvement of our quality of life.

         11                 I thank you for the opportunity to

         12  express my support for the Gateway Center at the

         13  Bronx Terminal Market and ask that you favorably

         14  vote on the measures before you.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 MR. OSORIO: Good morning, Chairman,

         17  City Council members. I'm here representing the

         18  Neighborhood Youth and Family --  Neighborhood

         19  Association for Intercultural Affairs. NAIA is a

         20  37-year-old --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: State your name

         22  for the record.

         23                 MR. OSORIO: The name is Luis Osorio.

         24  And I'm on the Board of Directors for the

         25  Neighborhood Association for Intercultural Affairs.
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          2  It's a 37-year-old commnity-based organization

          3  providing social services, housing and mediation,

          4  core mediation to the residents of the Bronx.

          5                 The Board of Directors, we all feel

          6  that at this point that, our Executive Director,

          7  Eddie LaGear, that this particular project would not

          8  only bring economic development, but also address

          9  some of the issues that we feel are very important

         10  or impacting the City of New York.

         11                 Clearly, those who have jobs provide

         12  a stable home to their children and their family,

         13  which in fact often times without jobs is the end

         14  result of abuse, neglect, drug addiction and

         15  domestic violence and other issues. Thus, we feel

         16  that with this particular project coming to the

         17  Bronx and providing jobs to our residents, we are

         18  able to address the social issues and strengthen our

         19  fiber.

         20                 We right now are encouraging the City

         21  Council to vote yes on this project, and welcome any

         22  opportunity to become a partner. Thank you.

         23                 MS. ABRAHAM LINDSEY: Good morning. My

         24  name is Ann Abraham Lindsey. I'm a consultant for

         25  the 161st Street Merchants Association for the last

                                                            97

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  15 years.

          3                 I'm going to make my statement short,

          4  because Mr. Masyr had already put some of my

          5  statement into the record when he made his speech.

          6  We are, the Merchants Association, is definitely in

          7  support of this project, and we have stressed it

          8  many times to the Related Company, and I ask you to

          9  please, please read it and any question you'd like

         10  to ask, I'll answer.

         11                 Thank you. And, again, please vote

         12  for the program.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I've always liked

         14  those short speeches.

         15                 Sir.

         16                 MR. BUBBINS: Hello. I'm Harry

         17  Bubbins, with Friends of Brook Park, for the record.

         18  And I'm for, like the Loraks (phonetic), I'm going

         19  to speak for the trees and for the waterfront park,

         20  not necessarily for the whole project.

         21                 And thanks to the Council for having

         22  these hearings and Council Member Arroyo for being a

         23  strong champion of our community to make sure that

         24  our community, if this plan does go through, those

         25  are the questions, that the unique location not be
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          2  obscured in the tug-of-war between Related and the

          3  merchants.

          4                 So, on the Harlem River.  When the

          5  Mayor first proposed the velodrome plan, we didn't

          6  like it. We weren't consulted. And here we go again

          7  not being consulted for a prime site in our

          8  community as to what we want.

          9                 We do want waterfront access. The

         10  problem with the Related plan and what is proposed

         11  there is the water is not really accessible because

         12  of the garbage rail tracks that you all should be

         13  familiar with through the Solid Waste Committee's

         14  work. Waste Management, one of the largest waste

         15  handlers in this City, carts the trash along the

         16  rail, so it's really not a waterfront park actually

         17  because you can't get to the water because of the

         18  rail, but you have this packet in your hands, and

         19  Council Member Arroyo has been a champion of this

         20  effort. There are other nearby locations that are

         21  accessible to the river. We actually canoe and kayak

         22  with youth and adults, and although we've gone to

         23  the terminal market to get coconuts and mangos in

         24  bulk, and we hope that we'll still have that

         25  opportunity, it's important that we have a
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          2  waterfront park that we can access the water with

          3  canoes and kayaks for our programs.

          4                 What we have going on is the Yankee

          5  Stadium deal. I understand that related is talking

          6  about giving them money for the park to the Yankee

          7  Stadium deal, further delaying the efforts of

          8  greenery in the community. If the Bronx Terminal

          9  merchants are kept on the site, on the park site,

         10  again, we would lose that resource.

         11                 So, I would encourage you to look at

         12  this packet. There are other viable alternatives in

         13  the vicinity with plans ready to go.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         16                 First panel in opposition will be

         17  Richard Lipsky from the Neighborhood Retail

         18  Alliance. Carter Craft from the Metropolitan

         19  Waterfront Alliance. Jasper Goldman from the

         20  Municipal Art Society. And Richard Whalen from UFCW.

         21                 MR. LIPSKY: Yes, thank you, Mr.

         22  Chairman. My name is Richard Lipsky, Neighborhood

         23  Retail Alliance. I have the distinction today to

         24  represent the merchants in the market as well as the

         25  United Food and Commercial Workers, who are
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          2  concerned about the tenancy issues that Council

          3  Member Sears raised.

          4                 This whole project, I wanted to give

          5  special thanks to Council Members McMahon and Gioia,

          6  for really trying to get to the heart of the legal

          7  issues here, because what's facing the Council is

          8  not just a Land Use decision, although it is a Land

          9  Use decision.

         10                 As Council Members Gioia and McMahon

         11  pointed out, there was a lease transfer here, and

         12  the question of its viability, the question of its

         13  justification legally and according to the Charter,

         14  is something that Andrew Alper brings up in his

         15  testimony, says the judge ruled in favor. But what

         16  the judge ruled was basically that when it comes to

         17  the public wholesale markets in this City and the

         18  power of the Mayor and the Commissioner of Business

         19  Services supersedes the City Council and Section 384

         20  of the Charter, which demands open competitive

         21  bidding of those leases, and a public appraisal of

         22  the property and then subject those leases to public

         23  review, none of which happened now.

         24                 Alper went into very detailed

         25  convoluted testimony as to why that happened, but
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          2  the essence of why it happened was in one phrase he

          3  used. The Deputy Mayor Dan Doctoroff brought his

          4  friend Steve into the deal, and figured out how to

          5  get a commercial development on the site, and after

          6  all of that happened, the Related Companies walked

          7  away with the deal without competitive bidding.

          8                 Now, what does the deal do? The deal

          9  is a $40 million a year benefit to Related, because

         10  at the end of the day, at the maturity of this

         11  lease, and again they were tap dancing around what

         12  the actual tenants will pay. I was with a regional

         13  supermarket chain executive last week who said he

         14  was in negotiation with Related for the supermarket

         15  site at $40 a square foot for a plain vanilla box.

         16  Now, at five percent of gross, at five percent of

         17  gross, which is the maximum that Related will pay

         18  the City, that's $2 million if we assume a $40

         19  million (sic) per square foot figure. That means

         20  that Related is pocketing 38, the City is pocketing

         21  $2 a square foot. Merchants were paying a hell of a

         22  lot more than that.

         23                 So, this reminds me of the situation

         24  where the my dog got run over the other day and the

         25  driver did it with such skill that the bystanders
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          2  awarded him both ears and a tail. The merchants got

          3  run over. Related got the gold mine. They got the

          4  shaft. And I really resent the idea when Mr. Alper

          5  says, well, maybe they'll have enough money to

          6  retire. These people have been there for decades.

          7  They have mostly minority businesses. They are not

          8  at fault for the dilapidation and dereliction of

          9  this market. The City of New York and Buntzman is.

         10                 Now, as we turn out through this

         11  immaculate deception, Buntzman now becomes a partner

         12  going forward in reward for his dereliction and

         13  reward for his running down of this marketplace.

         14                 For this deal to go forward, there

         15  needs to be, and, again, I'll wrap it up quickly,

         16  there needs to be a relocation and a spot for these

         17  merchants, and the disingenuousness of Mr. Alper

         18  saying that we've offered all these different sites,

         19  they have to be together, there is a certain synergy

         20  there.

         21                 If they're not together, they don't

         22  survive. It doesn't matter if you give them two,

         23  three or four dollars, that's cab fare to leave

         24  town. And for some people who have dedicated their

         25  lives, you will hear from today, 40 or 50 years
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          2  their family have been in this marketplace, and then

          3  we get a letter from Corp Counsel, from EDC, saying

          4  we are under no obligation to do anything for you

          5  because we're not the landlords of this market. We

          6  have that. We will put that in record. That's what

          7  Ms. Sassin Feinstein (phonetic) said. If they're not

          8  the landlord, how is this a public market?

          9                 But the City Council needs to look

         10  very carefully at this deal from another

         11  perspective. Because if it's true, that's Section

         12  1301 of the Charter, supersedes Section 384, means

         13  that the Charter-mandated powers for Review, Public

         14  Transfers of Leases has been abrogated by this

         15  judge's decision, which Mr. Alper said was with such

         16  dramatic clarity. It was. The gauntlet is thrown

         17  down to you guys, that in fact is, that's what

         18  happens, though, when you don't have a public review

         19  process, when there is no competitive bidding, you

         20  have one company getting a deal like this, the

         21  taxpayer is getting the short end of the deal, and

         22  the Bronx merchants being evicted from this.

         23                 So, what we're saying, as far as the

         24  merchants are concerned, we need a relocation plan,

         25  and we need to have the commitment of EDC, that it
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          2  is their responsibility to do that. I will let Mr.

          3  Whelan from the UFCW, the Regional Director, talk

          4  about the tenancy issues, and I'll let them do that

          5  now.

          6                 MR. WHALEN: Good morning. Barely

          7  morning. My name is Richard Whelan. I'm the Region 1

          8  Director of the United Food and Commercial Workers

          9  Union. Our union are under Locals 1500, 342, 348 and

         10  888, represent over 40,000 workers in New York City.

         11                 Our members work in supermarkets,

         12  meat wholesalers and other commercial venues

         13  throughout the five boroughs.

         14                 I'm here today to signal our union's

         15  opposition to the application before you today. The

         16  Related Companies proposal to turn the Bronx

         17  Terminal Market into a suburban-style mall is

         18  fundamentally flawed and needs to be withdrawn so

         19  that certain critical issues can be addressed.

         20                 Currently we do not know for sure

         21  which stores will tenant the Gateway Mall, because

         22  the developer has been purposely tight-lipped about

         23  the issue.

         24                 In our opinion, approving an

         25  application without this information is highly
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          2  problematic. For a Land Use perspective, we're not

          3  sure how the Council can gauge traffic, economic,

          4  environmental and other impacts without knowing

          5  exactly which stores will tenant the mall.

          6                 A Wal-Mart will have a very different

          7  effect than a Kohls, and unless Council members know

          8  which of the stores are a part of that development,

          9  how can they conduct a proper review?

         10                 Another problem arises if the City

         11  Council proves Related's development without knowing

         12  who the anchors are.

         13                 The application before you includes a

         14  rezoning of a million square feet of space from

         15  manufacturing to commercial use.

         16                 Once this change is approved, the

         17  developer can install any big box it wants,

         18  including anti-union, anti-worker, Wal-Mart or

         19  B.J.'s. If the Council does not insist on a binding

         20  agreement prior to approvals, there is nothing that

         21  it can do to prevent undesirable stores from the

         22  site.

         23                 We believe this is the developer's

         24  conscious trojan horse strategy, obtain the rezoning

         25  for its innocent seeming mall and then sneak in
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          2  these unwelcome companies.

          3                 Despite the developer's deliberate

          4  deception, however, we have received reliable

          5  information that a B.J.'s will be at the Gateway

          6  Mall.

          7                 In addition to the store's horrendous

          8  Wal-Mart-like labor practices, another problem is

          9  that it will virtually be inaccessible to the

         10  neighborhood consumers.

         11                 In Bronx, District 4, where the

         12  Gateway Project will be located, 57 percent of the

         13  residents received public assistance, and more than

         14  40,000 people are recipients of food stamps.

         15                 B.J.'s, however, does not accept food

         16  stamps or WIC, and has a $45 membership fee and is

         17  highly auto-dependent, a disturbing fact,

         18  considering that the South Bronx has the lowest

         19  automobile ownership rate in the City.

         20                 And not only would this out-of-town

         21  retailer be effectively red-lining these needy

         22  customers, it would be replacing the indigenous,

         23  predominantly minority-owned merchants at the Bronx

         24  Terminal Market, who have served that community with

         25  unique ethnic products for decades.
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          2                 The concern with Wal-Mart and B.J.'s

          3  speaks to a greater issue we have with this

          4  application from a Land Use perspective.

          5                 As part of ULURP --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: If you can start

          7  to sum up? You've gone significantly over.

          8                 MR. WHALEN: I'm sorry.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thanks.

         10                 MR. WHALEN: We are not opposed to

         11  redevelopment in the Bronx, but we want a

         12  responsible development that provides good jobs to

         13  the Bronx and not these big box conglomerates that

         14  take advantage of the community.

         15                 Thank you for your time.

         16                 MR. CRAFT: Good afternoon. And thanks

         17  for the opportunity to testify. My name is Carter

         18  Craft.  I'm Director of the Metropolitan Waterfront

         19  Alliance. I think a lot of the testimony is focused

         20  on the retail and the big box and the land side

         21  flavor. I think the whole problem with the proposal

         22  is that it doesn't really give enough attention to

         23  the waterfront and I think that's something that

         24  there's still time to correct.

         25                 I have a couple of maps here. One
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          2  really shows the highway network in New York City,

          3  and as you can see from the area in the Bronx, along

          4  the Major Deegan, either up the Bruckner or to Hunts

          5  Point, as well as the Cross Bronx Expressway, you

          6  know, really creates an iron triangle in the Bronx

          7  on a whole other level outside of Willet's Point.

          8                 And when you look at economic

          9  development on this scale, you know, this really

         10  represents the time, if ever, to create waterfront

         11  access and create it now.

         12                 That waterfront has been locked up by

         13  Robert Moses, it was locked up by Lord Vanderbilt

         14  160 years ago, and if we don't free it up now, we'll

         15  lose that opportunity for another century.

         16                 To me, the waterfront isn't just a

         17  development issue. It's a human issue, and it's the

         18  people of the Bronx that really deserve more than

         19  they're getting.

         20                 As this map represents, it's a census

         21  track map showing the areas of the City where more

         22  than 40 percent of the people are under the age of

         23  18. And if you can look at that whole area of the

         24  central and most of the Bronx, you know, it's a very

         25  young borough. And when you look at the opportunity
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          2  of what the waterfront represents, for recreation,

          3  for public space, for clean air and environmental

          4  quality, we really don't want to miss this

          5  opportunity.

          6                 So, I'd like to present five ideas,

          7  which I think the Council hopefully can advocate

          8  for, and the City and the Bloomberg Administration

          9  will hopefully be receptive to.

         10                 Number one, the investment in the

         11  waterfront. It's not enough to ask Related to pay to

         12  give the Stadium Authority the money to upgrade the

         13  waterfront. They need to include the maintenance

         14  money with it. They pay for the capital, they should

         15  pay for the maintenance, and that's how waterfront

         16  zoning and waterfront development works for

         17  commercial properties.

         18                 Number two, the waterfront should be

         19  freed up for open space now and not locked up as a

         20  staging area for construction, which we all know it

         21  will become, unless we take action.

         22                 Number three, the money for the park

         23  should be set aside elsewhere and outside any of the

         24  stadium funds, either sent to the Parks Department,

         25  or sent to some account where it can't be tapped so
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          2  it won't get gobbled up by cost overruns, which we

          3  all know will happen with the stadium and all of

          4  these other developments.

          5                 Number four, the testing that's done

          6  for the stadium site, or even for the Bronx Terminal

          7  Market site, excuse me, should also look at those

          8  waterfront parcels now to understand what are the

          9  environmental issues there, what is the level of

         10  contamination there, and have those remediation

         11  costs factored into the final economic terms of the

         12  deal, not borne by the City.

         13                 And my last recommendation really is

         14  for the City to give the same respect and the same

         15  consideration to this side of the Bronx as it did

         16  for the Hunts Point side, where given the expansion

         17  to the sewage treatment plant and the move of the

         18  fish market there, they came to the table, they put

         19  together Hunts Point Vision Plan, and this is an

         20  area of the Bronx, and this is an area of the whole

         21  City, the longest stretch of waterfront in the City

         22  with no public access that needs a vision plan.

         23                 So, I hope the City and the Council

         24  advocate for that vision plan to be put into place

         25  as these projects move ahead.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Carter, can you

          4  get the standing writing from the organization?

          5                 MR. CRAFT: Certainly.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I would

          7  appreciate that.

          8                 Next speaker.

          9                 MR. GOLDMAN: Hi. My name is Jasper

         10  Goldman, and I'm here today representing the

         11  Municipal Arts Society.

         12                 We're very pleased to have the

         13  opportunity to testify today. We're delighted to see

         14  an effort to revitalize as part of the Bronx, but we

         15  are concerned about several aspects of the project,

         16  particularly the survival of the market, the

         17  proposed urban design and the waiver of these

         18  signage regulations.

         19                 We believe that the Bronx Terminal

         20  Market forms a unique part of the economy and

         21  culture of the Bronx and the largest city, and it's

         22  a vital part of the livable city that we've been

         23  advocating for 110 years.

         24                 The market is a regional center for

         25  produce and goods that cannot be obtained easily
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          2  elsewhere in the City and serves a market,

          3  particularly recent immigrants, that few of the

          4  shopping area serve.

          5                 The proposal before you today

          6  anticipates the eviction of the current market

          7  vendors. The future of the market and its vendors

          8  has not yet been assured.

          9                 If the market is to be relocated, the

         10  Council must ensure that the market vendors can

         11  remain together at a new location with good access

         12  to ground transportation and ample room for

         13  expansion.

         14                 The success of public markets, as

         15  Councilman Monserrate indicated earlier, hinders on

         16  the synergy between different vendors who would not

         17  be financially viable operating on their own. And

         18  this is particularly true of the merchants of the

         19  Bronx Terminal Market.

         20                 One promising proposal has been

         21  advanced by Irwin Cohen, who is the developer of the

         22  Chelsea Market, and the current proposal would

         23  relocate the market to the other side of the Major

         24  Deegan Expressway, which is currently referred to as

         25  the velodrome site that Mr. Alper referred to
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          2  earlier. And we believe that this opportunity to

          3  adapt the successful Chelsea Market precedent should

          4  be carefully considered with this site in mind. And

          5  it could well co-exist with the waterfront park with

          6  a good, thoughtful design.

          7                 We also are not yet convinced that is

          8  is necessary to move the market from its present

          9  location on Exterior Street.

         10                 The site is large enough to allow for

         11  the market to remain in its current location and

         12  co-exist with the proposed new mall.

         13                 The market buildings are historic

         14  resources eligible for the National Registry for

         15  their association with the commercial, political and

         16  social history of New York City.

         17                 And the Council should ask the

         18  developers to put more pressure on retaining those

         19  buildings, or some of them.

         20                 Finally, I'd like to talk a little

         21  bit about the urban design of the proposed project.

         22  We believe that developers of more like projects in

         23  New York City should adopt their development

         24  prototypes to reflect the unique urban character of

         25  the City.
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          2                 In particular, we believe the project

          3  should avoid the black walls that deaden streets and

          4  blight so much of the development. And the animation

          5  that you saw earlier today, that was particularly

          6  true of the River Avenue frontage, which we believe

          7  will be deadened by this proposal.

          8                 What we would like to see is more

          9  street entrances directly into the project from

         10  Rivera Avenue, which is the street which is fronting

         11  the neighborhood.

         12                 We also join I think Councilwoman

         13  Sears in the request that the Council put pressure

         14  on the developers to have more locally owned retail

         15  that the poorest congressional district in the

         16  country can actually utilize.

         17                 So, as I think one of the speakers

         18  earlier referred to, this project does not red line

         19  the Bronx from the shops in the project.

         20                 And one last point. The project

         21  incorporates a "naked parking garage" in the

         22  project.  I think this is another unfortunate

         23  suburban prototype. The City recently adopted

         24  impressive rules in the Greenpoint Wiliamsburg

         25  rezoning that called for wrapped parking facilities
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          2  with active street uses, and we believe similar

          3  rules should be incorporated into this project.

          4                 Thank you very much for the

          5  opportunity to speak.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          7                 Next panel in favor, and actually the

          8  last panel in favor, is Manuel Parker and Vincent

          9  Torres.

         10                 Is there anybody else who wishes to

         11  speak in favor at this time? Okay.

         12                 And then the next few panels will be

         13  in opposition. We will have two more panels after

         14  this.

         15                 MR. PARKER: Good afternoon. My name

         16  is Manuel Parker, and I reside at 162nd Street for

         17  the past 32 years. All my life.

         18                 I'm in full support of the Bronx

         19  Terminal Market. The area is an eyesore, riddled by

         20  drugs, prostitution, illegal immigrants working for

         21  obscene wages.

         22                 The area is in dire need of

         23  development. Through Positive Workforce, I am a

         24  member of Local 731, and because of Positive

         25  Workforce, I am able to maintain work. The
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          2  construction of the Bronx Terminal Market will

          3  provide myself and those in my community with

          4  gainful employment, opportunities we just could not

          5  afford to lose.

          6                 The people and construction workers

          7  of the community should not be denied an opportunity

          8  for better living. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The speakers who

         10  speak the shortest, usually make the point the best.

         11  And you just did.

         12                 MR. PARKER: Thank you.

         13                 MR. TORRES: Good afternoon. First of

         14  all, I'd like to thank the Committee Chair and City

         15  Planning Commission for having this hearing and

         16  providing us the opportunity to be here this

         17  afternoon.

         18                 My name is Vincent Torres and I'm one

         19  of the directors of Positive Workforce. Positive

         20  Workforce is a non-profit minority construction

         21  workers organization that through its founder, Luck

         22  Varel, has struggled hard and fought hard for over

         23  20 years to find thousands of jobs for men and women

         24  in the construction industry.

         25                 For a site of this size and nature to
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          2  be denied to this community will be a disservice to

          3  our city, a disservice to the community and a

          4  disservice to the people in the community.

          5                 I don't know how many of us here

          6  today live in this neighborhood, but the residents

          7  and youth in this neighborhood need jobs.

          8                 There will be many job opportunities

          9  this project will provide, close to 2,000

         10  construction jobs, and 2,000 permanent jobs. There

         11  are too many opportunities here we just can't afford

         12  to lose.

         13                 I ask the Committee Chair and City

         14  Planning Commission to pass this very much needed

         15  project, and to remove the eyesore which has existed

         16  in the Bronx for too long.

         17                 Many of us have time to battle this

         18  out, while the youth in this community are simply

         19  running out of time.

         20                 Let's remind everyone that Community

         21  Board in this district that serves as an Advisory

         22  Board voted in favor of this project. Build it now.

         23  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

         25  gentlemen.
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          2                 Next panel is Kirk Swanson from the

          3  Retail Wholesale Department Store Union.  Brian

          4  Ketcham from the Neighborhood Retail Alliance.

          5  Andrew, is it Tullach?

          6                 MR. TULLACH: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And Susan

          8  Fainstein.

          9                 MR. SWANSON: In our panel, Mr.

         10  Chairman, we're going to ask Professor Fainstein to

         11  go first, if that's okay with you?

         12                 MS. FAINSTEIN: I'm Susan Fainstein.

         13  I'm the Director of the Urban Planning Program at

         14  Columbia University, and I'm representing the

         15  merchants at the Bronx Terminal Market.

         16                 Several of the Council members

         17  referred to the possibility of a win/win situation

         18  and we're still hopeful of that, that, in fact,

         19  improvement of the market for the market merchants,

         20  along with the construction of the mall, could

         21  greatly enhance this part of the Bronx, could take

         22  advantage of the City's ethnic diversity, and could

         23  make an important contribution to the Bronx economy.

         24                 The plans that you saw today for the

         25  shopping mall, despite, and you all know what these
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          2  renderings on power point do, disguise to some

          3  extent that this is in fact really a suburban

          4  shopping mall with large blank walls, and that

          5  rather than beautifying the Bronx, it can produce

          6  sort of one ambiance.

          7                 There was a picture of the mall

          8  opening onto Exterior Street with people sitting in

          9  sidewalk cafes under the Major Deegan as tractor

         10  trailers roll by overhead, as the pigeon droppings

         11  float down into their cappacinos, paint chips, dirt

         12  and squalor. I think it extremely unlikely that

         13  these cafes in fact will ever be realized.

         14                 The whole design is one that is

         15  unlikely to produce the neighborhood spinoffs that

         16  were claimed, since the mall is fully enclosed and

         17  most of its services are internalized.

         18                 It was also claimed that people would

         19  come on foot, if this were the case they wouldn't be

         20  building these enormous parking decks. Obviously

         21  there's a huge increment to the number of cars that

         22  will be coming into the area.

         23                 The claim is that the mall will

         24  contribute 2,500 jobs. No data, however, is provided

         25  concerning the number of these jobs that will be
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          2  full-time, and what we know about shopping malls is

          3  that most of the jobs are part-time, typically at

          4  least half, and typically do not provide benefits.

          5                 It is also claimed that the mall will

          6  cause consumers to shift their spending to the

          7  Bronx, whereas now they do it elsewhere. The

          8  implication is that they spend it in Westchesters or

          9  New Jersey, but in fact most spend it in Manhattan,

         10  so that the net impact on the City's tax base would

         11  in fact be nil.

         12                 The money won't stick in the Bronx

         13  because the Related Companies' owners don't live in

         14  the Bronx. And the owners of the mall stores don't

         15  live in the Bronx. So, the only real increment to

         16  the economic development of the Bronx is the payroll

         17  going to minimum wage employees.

         18                 As many people have said, the

         19  merchants benefit from clustering. Breaking them up

         20  will destroy this business advantage.

         21                 Their workers are predominantly older

         22  men who have worked for these firms for many years,

         23  they're very unlikely to find new jobs.

         24                 My time is up, so I just want to say

         25  in conclusion that the merchants were presented as
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          2  in some way irrational, uncompromising and

          3  unrealistic, but you have to understand that if they

          4  didn't really think that their businesses are all

          5  going to go down the drain, as a consequence of

          6  their being broken up, they would not be spending

          7  money that they can ill-afford on this very

          8  expensive legal talent, by which I am surrounded,

          9  and all of these consultant fees, that this is

         10  really a matter of life and death for these people,

         11  and that under the current plans there is no

         12  realistic relocation plan. The already built space

         13  that's been shown to them is totally unsuitable for

         14  them, and, so, we're talking about driving these 16

         15  merchants and their 400 employees out of business.

         16  Thank you.

         17                 MR. TULLACH: I'm Andrew Tullach. I'm

         18  with the firm of Lowenstein Sandler. I'm with the

         19  attorneys representing the merchants.

         20                 I'm going to e-mail to the Committee

         21  the full text of my testimony which well exceeds two

         22  minutes. Additionally, I have redistributed the

         23  report, Council Member Jackson's Contracts Committee

         24  and the Council staff last June which deals with all

         25  the gimmies and the benefits and the give-aways that
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          2  Related had, also with the rhetorical question which

          3  still has not been answered by that hearing. What

          4  will become of the merchants?

          5                 Additionally, we have distributed

          6  copies of a rendering, a coexisting market, with the

          7  Related market, potentially on the velodrome site or

          8  another site.

          9                 I'm going to answer Councilman

         10  Seabrook's question. Councilman Seabrook, the

         11  majority of the jobs are non-union, the majority of

         12  the jobs are minority, the majority of the jobs, the

         13  owners are minority, they're mom and pop businesses.

         14                 The alternative with older middle --

         15  I would say from the thirties, age 30 on up, African

         16  American, African, Korean, Latino men being employed

         17  by this new project is zero. And in fact, at the

         18  Planning Commission hearing, one of the

         19  Commissioners blithly said the City can retrain

         20  them. If Banana Republic goes in, they can work in

         21  Banana Republic. The bottom line here is, is that

         22  everybody can co-exist here. There can be a true

         23  win/win. The velodrome site has been looked at by

         24  Irwin Cohen, the developer of the Chelsea market,

         25  which everybody said was a dead area, which was in
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          2  terms of the two speakers before us, in the prior

          3  panel, was the way people described the Chelsea

          4  Market area. I know, I lived right near that market.

          5  The issue here is that we can do a project on that

          6  site that the merchants are not irrational, that the

          7  City has not budged off its position. Chairman Alper

          8  has misrepresented what has gone on in the

          9  negotiations, and the fact of the matter here is,

         10  very clearly, that the Cornerstone has never offered

         11  a relocation policy, the environmental impact

         12  statement is flawed in the sense that it never dealt

         13  with the viability of markets, it never dealt with

         14  the viability of the economic impact on the

         15  merchants, and the fact of the matter here is you

         16  will be creating a situation where 400 jobs will

         17  permanently be gone, the people in these markets

         18  will become what is known euphemistically by the

         19  economists as structurally, permanently unemployed.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 MR. KETCHAM: Good afternoon. Is this

         22  working? Okay.

         23                 My name is Brian Ketcham. I am

         24  president of Brian Ketcham Engineering, and

         25  Executive Director of Community Consulting Services.
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          2  I am a licensed professional engineer, practicing in

          3  transportation in the environment.

          4                 I've been retained by the

          5  Neighborhood Retail Alliance to review and critique

          6  the traffic analysis prepared for the Bronx Terminal

          7  Market. I will focus most of my comments, in fact

          8  all of my comments, since I'm cutting it short, on

          9  the traffic.

         10                 The proposed Bronx Terminal Market

         11  will generate huge numbers of vehicular trips at all

         12  times of the day. It will clog local roads, and in

         13  particular the Major Deegan, the EIS does not begin

         14  to disclose the impact this project will have on

         15  nearby communities.

         16                 In fact, the traffic analysis asserts

         17  this project, in spite of adding thousands of trips

         18  an hour to surrounding roads, as benign. It is a

         19  preposterous assertion. Related Companies has

         20  significantly underestimated the amount of traffic

         21  this project would generate, assuming just 59

         22  percent of shoppers will arrive and depart the Bronx

         23  Terminal Market by auto, based on this location and

         24  poor proximity to transit versus this fantastic

         25  proximity to the Major Deegan, 90 percent of
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          2  shoppers will actually access this site by

          3  automobile.

          4                 At more than a million square feet

          5  the retail space -- of retail space, it is twice the

          6  size of the Gateway estates in Brooklyn, another

          7  Related project. That project generates 2,500 auto

          8  trips in the evening peak hour, 28,000 trips on a

          9  typical weekday, 34,000 on Saturdays and floods the

         10  Belt Parkway.

         11                 The proposed Bronx Terminal Market

         12  should generate nearly double these numbers. Gateway

         13  Estates in Brooklyn provides 3,500 parking spaces,

         14  yet exhibits overflow traffic on Fridays and

         15  Saturdays. The Bronx Terminal Market plans just

         16  3,000 parking places for a project double the size

         17  of Gateway Estates. Compounding this is the Yankees

         18  attendees will utilize some of this space on game

         19  days, the Bronx Terminal Market will suffer

         20  spillover traffic, with back-ups onto the Major

         21  Deegan, a disastrous effect.

         22                 The Bronx Terminal Market can be

         23  expected to generate more than 250,000 vehicular

         24  trips a week, 40,000 on weekdays, 50,000 on

         25  Saturdays, and 3,500 trips on weekday evening peak
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          2  hours, double what is reported in the DEIS.

          3                 Eighty percent of these trips are

          4  expected to arrive and depart the project via the

          5  Major Deegan. The Major Deegan is at capacity for

          6  much of the day, adding approximately 3,000 vehicles

          7  to the Major Deegan and the evening peak hour will

          8  bring the Major Deegan to a hold, especially in

          9  proximity of Highbridge connection where it's

         10  already at a halt typically.

         11                 So, where will these vehicles go, if

         12  they can't get on the Major Deegan? They'll go on to

         13  local streets. In short, I'll cut out my comments

         14  about air quality, in short the DEIS traffic

         15  analysis is wrong. It low balls project impact,

         16  consequently under-reports air quality and noise

         17  impacts, the project will place a huge traffic

         18  burden on nearby communities, it will clog the Major

         19  Deegan causing huge delays for other travelers,

         20  severely impacting individuals and businesses.

         21                 Concentrating so many trips in one

         22  area and relying on an already over-stressed Major

         23  Deegan for mostly its access and egress without full

         24  mitigation, the mitigation that costs several

         25  hundreds of millions of dollars, is wrong and should
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          2  be stopped. This is the wrong place to concentrate

          3  40 to 50,000 daily car and truck trips. This project

          4  should not be approved.

          5                 MR. SWANSON: Thank you, Chairman

          6  Avella, members of the Council, for the opportunity

          7  to speak.

          8                 Hello. My name is Kirk Swanson,

          9  Political Director of the Retail and Wholesale

         10  Department Store Union. I'm here today on behalf of

         11  the 40,000 members of the RWDSU who live and work in

         12  New York, and we strongly oppose Related's refusal

         13  to identify the desired tenants, Wal-Mart and

         14  B.J.'s, two of their desired tenants.

         15                 If the City is going to relocate an

         16  existing business community, the predominantly

         17  minority market wholesalers of the Bronx Terminal

         18  Market, the developers should make a statement that

         19  the benefits to our communities and working families

         20  outweigh this unfortunate cost. The largest proposed

         21  single development in Bronx history with over 1

         22  million square feet of retail space is certainly a

         23  statement, but with Wal-Mart or B.J.'s as anchors,

         24  the statement by Related and the City will be

         25  entirely negative.
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          2                 Why? Because big box promise of low

          3  wages, worse health care, and infrastructure demands

          4  come at a steep price, a price that New Yorkers

          5  cannot afford to pay.

          6                 Why should New York City welcome

          7  B.J.'s to the Bronx Terminal Market when they charge

          8  anywhere from $45 to $80 for yearly membership and

          9  refuse to accept food stamps or WIC program

         10  benefits?

         11                 Why should B.J.'s be welcomed by New

         12  York's working families when they have workers

         13  arrested and paraded in front of the co-workers

         14  because they want a union.

         15                 And Wal-Mart, the big box trend

         16  setter is the world's largest and richest

         17  corporation who thinks that since their social

         18  safety net can be abused, it should be. Especially

         19  it raises their profit margins. Remember that greed

         20  is good, according to one infamous character. In

         21  their callous world view, why should health care be

         22  Wal-Mart's problem, if they can pawn it off on

         23  taxpayers? And it doesn't stop there.

         24                 A recently leaked internal memo

         25  proposed that Wal-Mart managers discourage unhealthy
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          2  job applicants by arranging for, quote, "All jobs to

          3  include some physical activity," generally of the

          4  strenuous variety; creating incentives for hiring a

          5  younger and healthier workforce. This memo also

          6  discussed limiting seniority.

          7                 Is this what the Bronx Terminal

          8  Market needs? Is this what we want there, a

          9  corporation that wants to address rising health care

         10  benefits costs by instituting a Ugenix program?

         11                 I can guarantee that a company that

         12  thinks like this doesn't care about the communities,

         13  workers or families that will surround the site.

         14  They do not share the values common to all New

         15  Yorkers, dignity, respect for the law, fair pay for

         16  a day's work. We might as well be from another

         17  planet, as far as Wal-Mart is concerned.

         18                 Again, we adamantly oppose Related's

         19  refusal to identify their desired tenants. What are

         20  they hiding? We will not allow Related to aid and

         21  abet Wal-Mart and B.J.'s attempt to avoid the proper

         22  scrutiny they deserve from their anti-community,

         23  anti-worker practices.

         24                 We oppose this deception and urge the

         25  City Council to say no to the bad neighbors.

                                                            130

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 That being said, we don't oppose

          3  development. We oppose Wal-Mart and B.J.'s. Thank

          4  you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          6                 I'm going to call up the last panel

          7  and then I'm going to ask EDC and Related to come

          8  back. I have a couple of follow-up questions based

          9  on some of the public testimony. And also afford

         10  them the opportunity if they wanted to comment.

         11                 Stanley Mayer. Frank Vargas and

         12  Coustantinos Tyras. Did I pronounce that right?

         13                 MR. MAYER: Good afternoon. My name is

         14  Stanley Mayer. I'm a merchant at the Bronx Terminal

         15  Market. My family has operated Strauss, Inc., in the

         16  market since the early sixties. I am also President

         17  of the Bronx Terminal Market Preservation

         18  Association, a group of 16 predominantly minority

         19  wholesalers who have been fighting for almost two

         20  years to prevent the destruction of our market and

         21  our livelihoods.

         22                 The Bronx Terminal Market is the

         23  greatest provider of ethnic goods on the East Coast,

         24  specifically servicing the City's burgeoning

         25  immigrant populations.
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          2                 Our market also employs 400 mainly

          3  Spanish-speaking immigrants with decent salaries

          4  that can support a family.

          5                 Unfortunately, the Bronx Terminal

          6  Market is a unique source of Asian, African,

          7  Caribbean and Hispanic products and is in moral

          8  danger of imminent destruction.

          9                 As you already may know, the Related

         10  Companies proposed that a suburban style mall

         11  replacing our market and as a result wants us off

         12  the property as quickly as possible.

         13                 We, the merchants of the Bronx

         14  Terminal Market are not against development, we just

         15  want to be part of the new development. Despite our

         16  tireless efforts either to be incorporated into this

         17  new development plan or be given a fair relocation

         18  plan, almost nothing has been done to assist our

         19  businesses.

         20                 At no point has the City, EDC or

         21  Related presented us with the space, the money so we

         22  can remain together as the one viable, vibrant

         23  market we are today.

         24                 It is imperative that we remain

         25  together at the market. The proximity to each other,
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          2  the customer base in the Southwest Bronx and Upper

          3  Manhattan is a crucial requirement for our survival

          4  and economic viability.

          5                 I have my customers, other merchants

          6  in the market have their customers, and we also

          7  share many of the same customers. We also trade

          8  among ourselves. We sell similar and sometimes

          9  identical items, very competitively priced. We are a

         10  one-stop shopping market for the bodegas,

         11  mini-markets, delis, small restaurants and take-outs

         12  around the City, as well as many ethnic communities

         13  hundreds of miles away.

         14                 Instead of being helped, we're being

         15  continuously insulted and called worthless.

         16  Related's environmental impact statement asserts

         17  that our market is of negligible economic value. How

         18  can this be true when we collectively have annual

         19  sales approaching $450 million. Yet, later in the

         20  same EIS statement, there is a need for a wholesale

         21  food club, and the customers that we serve can

         22  easily purchase similar goods in New Jersey.

         23                 New York's EDC President Alper stated

         24  in a letter addressed to our attorneys that his

         25  agency was under no legal obligation to help us. A
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          2  sentiment echoed by Senior Counsel Terry Sasnow

          3  (phonetic), who also stated later in the

          4  correspondence the City has no obligation to provide

          5  a relocation for them, meaning the Bronx Terminal

          6  Market merchants.

          7                 We feel that we are the real New

          8  Yorkers, and we are just the type of people the City

          9  should be looking for, reliable, hard-working,

         10  ethnically diverse, small family-owned businesses

         11  that keep the money here in the City.

         12                 Now that Related's application is

         13  before the City Council and is considering the

         14  urgency of our situation, we are pleading for your

         15  help.

         16                 The first action of the City Council

         17  could take is to urge the City and the developer to

         18  stop eviction proceedings until a viable relocation

         19  plan is agreed upon.

         20                 Considering Justice Herman Kahn's

         21  decision, we and our workers could be out and on the

         22  streets in a matter of weeks.

         23                 Instead of trying to exterminate us,

         24  the City should be engaging in a win/win process

         25  that allows both the redevelopment of the South
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          2  Bronx and the preservation of 400 jobs and our

          3  unique ethnic market.

          4                 Again, we, the merchants of the Bronx

          5  Terminal Market, are not against development, we

          6  just want to be part of the new development.

          7                 The second action that the City

          8  Council could take is to demand that the so-called

          9  velodrome site west of the proposed Gateway Mall be

         10  reserved for the Bronx Terminal Market merchants.

         11                 Current lease partial (phonetic),

         12  which is a separate application from Related's

         13  development, was being considered at the same time,

         14  is designated as park land, but there is no reason

         15  why the Council cannot disapprove it and instead

         16  insist that our business move to this location.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Could you start

         18  to sum up, sir?

         19                 MR. MAYER: Certainly. Thank you.

         20                 According to one plan drawn up by

         21  Irwin Cohen, the developer of the Chelsea Market

         22  Velodrome site could easily house a new

         23  international market, as well as feature a

         24  waterfront esplanade and additional greenspace. I

         25  feel that a new, modern facility for our current

                                                            135

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  merchants at the Bronx market cannot only compliment

          3  but be an asset to the new Gateway project.

          4                 Furthermore, this piece of land is

          5  not connected to the new Yankee Stadium proposal and

          6  would therefore not interfere with those plans.

          7                 The Bronx Terminal Market has been in

          8  existence since the mid-1920s, many of the merchants

          9  have been in the market for generations. Some of the

         10  merchants are new immigrants to our City, serving a

         11  new immigration population of our community with

         12  tastes of home.

         13                 But if nothing is done soon, it will

         14  be destroyed within the next few weeks. I implore

         15  you to think about the 16 businesses, 400 employees,

         16  and the hundreds of families we support, along with

         17  the unique services we provide to the community, and

         18  do everything you can to ensure our survival.

         19                 We are not asking for much, just the

         20  opportunity to stay in business and to continue to

         21  provide New York City with the unique ethnic foods

         22  and distinctive products, that have been

         23  characterized by our market for the past 80 years.

         24                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         25  address the Committee, and thank you for your time.
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          2                 MR. VARGAS: Hi. My name is Frank

          3  Vargas. I'm another business owner in Bronx Terminal

          4  Market. I've been there over ten years. To be moved

          5  out of the circle of the other merchants, by

          6  business could shut down.

          7                 I just want to express that we must

          8  remain together if we're going to be moved, like the

          9  City has claimed, and a new market will be built for

         10  us all together. Because if we get displaced, we get

         11  sent all over the Bronx, we're not going to survive.

         12                 We have a synergy. We all sell

         13  different things. We all sell different things from

         14  different part of the world, be it African, Cuba,

         15  sorry -- Puerto Rico, the Dominican Republic,

         16  everywhere. We sell stuff from everywhere and we

         17  keep New York going. So, let's keep New York going,

         18  all right? Thank you. V&S Products. Store 35.

         19                 MR. KOUSTANTINOS: Hi. My name is

         20  Tyras Koustantinos, and I am one of the merchants in

         21  the market for the last 18 years. The market is

         22  definitely run down and needs reconstruction and all

         23  that, but we would like to be included in this new

         24  proposal, or whatever is coming up. Oh, Food Fest

         25  Cash and Carry.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          3                 Council Member Arroyo.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Hi. Every time

          5  I hear testimony I hear someone else representing

          6  the merchants. I heard two individuals here today

          7  say they represent the merchants. How do we get that

          8  clarified? I think it would be useful for us every

          9  time we speak to someone that are representing you,

         10  and it makes it more difficult for us to be helpful.

         11  So, if you can please clarify who the representative

         12  is for the merchants, it would be very helpful for

         13  us.

         14                 MR. MAYER: I'm confused as to who

         15  said they represented us. Mr. Lipsky is one of our

         16  -- Lowenstein Sandler, and their attorneys,

         17  represent us. Professor Fainstein was hired as a

         18  consultant, and Richard Lipsky is our political

         19  consultant, as well as other people. And Brian

         20  Ketcham was also hired to evaluate the EIS.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         23                 I'd like to call EDC and Related back

         24  up.

         25                 Thanks. I have a couple of questions,
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          2  and I know Council Member Arroyo does as well, and

          3  then I'll certainly give you the opportunity, if you

          4  wanted to comment on some of the public testimony.

          5                 For my education, one other thing

          6  that has come up, one consistent theme, is why are

          7  we not relocating these businesses in another

          8  central location? I don't think I've ever heard the

          9  answer to that, other than EDC isn't going to do it.

         10                 So, I guess my question is, is why

         11  are we not proceeding in that direction, given the

         12  fact that there is some logic to their argument,

         13  that the businesses survive together but separate

         14  they may just go under?

         15                 MR. MASYR: (Not identified for the

         16  record.) Well, I'll try and answer it. I'm not sure

         17  I can.

         18                 First of all, although they have

         19  stated, or several people you have heard from have

         20  stated that they must be together to survive, I

         21  suppose we do not accept, or that premise has not

         22  been documented to us. Certainly several merchants

         23  have already expressed a willingness to take the

         24  relocation package. As part of the environmental

         25  review and the Chapter that was referred to, it's
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          2  clear that there are other merchants in similar

          3  lines of business who are not part of the Bronx

          4  Terminal Market and are providing comparable lines

          5  of supplies, of foods, without being part of the

          6  Bronx Terminal Market.

          7                 I would also say we haven't said we

          8  will never relocate you together. The merchants and

          9  their representatives have proposed a variety of

         10  things that in our considered opinion do not work,

         11  and have not followed through on those things with

         12  further details to show us how they could work. And

         13  other than for the City to build a new wholesale

         14  market for this particular group, and for a variety

         15  of reasons, including the economics of the merchants

         16  as we understand them and the rents that would be

         17  necessary, the subsidized rents that would be

         18  necessary to support a new facility, we don't

         19  believe, it's our professional opinion, that are not

         20  viable alternatives. And as Mr. Alper stated, the

         21  economics of these businesses paying 7.50 a square

         22  foot, we believe are best served by retrofitting

         23  existing buildings for them.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You may remember

         25  that when you briefed me along with Related, I
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          2  brought up the issue that I was concerned about the

          3  storefronts along the Major Deegan side and the wall

          4  that was being created, and I think the professor

          5  made a number of comments that sort of was similar

          6  to mine when I had seen the proposal, that in fact,

          7  I didn't think -- that wall that you were creating

          8  was, in fact, going to cut off pedestrian access. I

          9  mean, I would like you to comment on what she said,

         10  as well as the issue that was brought up also by a

         11  number of speakers about the fact that there aren't

         12  a number of store fronts on the other side, which is

         13  more accessible to the community.

         14                 And I guess that brings into a

         15  discussion about the box store, because if you don't

         16  -- that may be the very reason why the plan doesn't

         17  show storefronts on the other side, because then you

         18  would limit your access to big box stores.

         19                 I would appreciate your comments on

         20  that.

         21                 MR. MASYR: No, that's not the reason.

         22  First, we would take issue with the idea that there

         23  isn't street retail here. In fact, there is

         24  tremendous amount of street retail. Difficult, as

         25  part of the challenge of the project, is to enliven

                                                            141

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  too main streets that really have no street life

          3  today.

          4                 And as you saw in the animation,

          5  certainly along Exterior Street we have a double

          6  problem of having the sidewalk on two different

          7  levels.

          8                 There we have actually seized that

          9  opportunity to enliven it with street level retail,

         10  be it restaurants and small shops that people can

         11  just access from the street. And that's going to be

         12  a tough street to bring people down. It's under a

         13  highway. It's not the most inviting space today, if

         14  you know it, so that's part of the challenge of the

         15  project, but it is enlivening the street.

         16                 Along River Avenue, as you enter the

         17  project, there is a number of street level retail

         18  opportunities. Certainly at the gateway to the

         19  project on 149th Street, the building that we are

         20  showing that we are restoring, is going to be all

         21  street level retail. If you walk further up the

         22  block, there's going to be between that small

         23  building that we're restoring, your first experience

         24  again is street level retail.

         25                 There is the first large retail
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          2  building that does not have entrances onto to River

          3  Avenue, and there's a reason for that, and it has

          4  nothing really to do with the type of tenancy. It

          5  has to do with the grade change of the site. We're

          6  building one site that has two sidewalks more than

          7  20 feet apart in elevation.

          8                 So, if I was to actually put an

          9  entrance, if you will, into the side of that

         10  building, no matter who the user was, I wouldn't be

         11  entering on the ground level. It's just a geometry

         12  problem.

         13                 As you walk further up River Avenue,

         14  and I pointed out in front of the garage as an

         15  example, that's going to be over 20,000 square feet

         16  of local retail sitting right there at our primary

         17  entrance to the site. So, any pedestrian walking to

         18  this site, be they walking from the south or coming

         19  from the north, their first experience at Bronx

         20  Terminal Market Project, Gateway Project, will be

         21  street level retail. But the River Avenue thing is

         22  purely a geometry issue. You'd wind up walking in

         23  the middle of the floor.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         25  Arroyo.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: We're

          3  scheduled to vote on this item I believe on the 1st.

          4  Will we know who the retailers will be by then?

          5                 MR. MASYR: No. We know the types of

          6  retailers that it will be. We don't know by then

          7  because this is going to take us another three years

          8  to create this project. There's enormous demolition

          9  in front of us. We have a general sense of who

         10  they're going to be, and we think we've designed a

         11  building that will be accommodating to that use.

         12                 As I've said all along, it's, you

         13  know, the larger and the mid-sized retailers that

         14  are out there already. But as to being able to tell

         15  you I have executed leases, to use an example, with

         16  Target, no, I won't be able to tell you that.

         17                 Would we like to have one of the

         18  Targets? Very much so. We think Target is a positive

         19  experience in the City of New York. I think people

         20  have shown they like it very much.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Okay, so let

         22  me ask the reverse.

         23                 MR. MASYR: Okay.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Will you be

         25  able to tell us who will not be there?

                                                            144

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 MR. MASYR: I think in terms of not

          3  wanting to guess the innuendo of your question, but

          4  I will nonetheless.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: No B.J.'s, no

          6  Wal-Mart.

          7                 MR. MASYR: There will not be a

          8  Wal-Mart in this establishment, in Bronx Terminal

          9  Market.

         10                 What we would like to have is the

         11  opportunity to have a warehouse shopping club. Once

         12  you tell me that, once we agree that there is no

         13  Wal-Mart, if you will, there is only two more

         14  warehouse shopping clubs out there, because there

         15  are only three in existence, and one of them is a

         16  Wal-Mart entity called "Sams." And I assume that

         17  when I tell you there won't be a Wal-Mart, you're

         18  going to also assume there is not going to be a

         19  Wal-Mart affiliate. We would like very much the

         20  opportunity to get a warehouse shopping club. We

         21  think it is beneficial for the community. We think,

         22  whoever it is, by the way, has got to act in a way

         23  that is beneficial to the community in large and

         24  particularly to the community that's immediately

         25  there. And we think there's ways of accomplishing
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          2  that in this process, and we think there are ways of

          3  making that legally enforceable in the process.

          4  Although, I must confess to you at this very moment,

          5  I don't have a roadmap. But I'm sure between now and

          6  the 1st, we can figure one out.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: And that

          8  decision will influence our decision.

          9                 MR. MASYR: You have made that

         10  abundantly clear from early on, Council member.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

         13  gentlemen.

         14                 MR. MASYR: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And I would like

         16  to thank Council Member Arroyo and the Bronx

         17  Delegation for their work on this issue, obviously.

         18  And we'll be in continuous discussions until

         19  February 1st.

         20                 I hereby adjourn this meeting --

         21  recess. Recess. Recess this meeting to 9:45 on

         22  February 1st.

         23                 Just for the record, the public

         24  hearing is closed, but the meeting is recessed.

         25                 (The following written testimony was
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          2  read into the record.)

          3

          4

          5  Written Testimony Of:

          6  Hank Kita

          7  Vice President

          8  Building Trades Employers' Association

          9

         10  January 23, 2006

         11  Land Use Subcommittee on Zoning & Franchises

         12

         13                 Good morning. My name is Hank Kita, I

         14  am Vice President of the Building Trades Employers'

         15  Association of NYC, New York's largest contractor

         16  association. BETA President, Louis Coletti, could

         17  not be here today, but he did want me to express his

         18  support and the support of the 15,00 construction

         19  companies and 25,000 project management and

         20  administrative personnel that make up the BTEA. The

         21  BTEA is unequivocally supportive of the Bronx

         22  Terminal Market and respectfully urge you to approve

         23  this project.

         24                 This project needs to be built for

         25  two main reasons;
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          2                 First, to provide the residents of

          3  the Bronx with convenient retail shopping

          4  opportunities and improve their quality of life by

          5  providing a new waterfront park and esplanade and

          6  other amenities that will enhance the neighborhood.

          7                 The second reason is pure economics.

          8  This project will provide over 5,200 permanent and

          9  construction jobs as well as generate some $21

         10  million in new annual tax revenue for New York City.

         11  Tax revenue that will be used to improve our

         12  schools, our policy and fire services. Without

         13  projects like this that generate new tax revenue,

         14  the only other place to generate new revenue is

         15  through increased taxes - and no one wants that.

         16                 This project offers special

         17  opportunities for Bronx revenues. Mr. Coletti

         18  recently served as a member of the Mayor's

         19  Commission on Construction Opportunities. Included

         20  in the commission's recommendation were commitments

         21  to increase apprentice jobs for minorities and women

         22  to some 40%, the commitment to provide construction

         23  contracts and technical training to local companies

         24  and many other community-based benefits.

         25                 The developer for the Bronx Terminal
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          2  Market project, the Related Companies, was one of

          3  the first companies to sign on to implement these

          4  initiatives - and have done so for this project.

          5  These initiatives will serve as a framework for

          6  creating a Community Benefits agreement which will

          7  ensure that many of the jobs and economic benefits

          8  from this project will stay with businesses and

          9  residents of the local Bronx community.

         10                 This has been achieved before. The

         11  Bronx Criminal Courthouse project is just such a

         12  project that serves as a successful model in the

         13  Bronx community. Many Bronx residents worked on that

         14  projects, many local forms helped build the project

         15  and many of the supplies were purchased from local

         16  Bronx businesses.

         17                 The Bronx Terminal Market project is

         18  a winner for the Bronx as well as for the entire

         19  City of New York. The BTEA strongly urges you to

         20  move forward, and do so quickly on approving this

         21  project so that construction and the economic

         22  benefits to be derived from this project can begin

         23  to be seen in the community as soon as possible.

         24                 (Hearing concluded at 12:55 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the
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         13  within proceeding.
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         15  related to any of the parties to this action by
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         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.
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